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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
(the “reporting period”).

The Group has recorded revenue of approximately RMB914,973,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB856,539,000),
representing an increase of 6.8% as compared to 2012. Profit attributable
to owners of the parent was approximately RMB153,099,000 (2012:
RMB114,506,000), representing an increase of 33.7% over 2012. The
increase in turnover and profit was mainly attributable to that the sales
performance of the Group’s system specific medicines remained
satisfactory.

In 2011, the then Ministry of Health in China launched the rectification
program for clinical application of antibacterial medicines, followed by the
implementation of the graded administrative measures for antibacterial
medicines, which had caused huge impacts on the cephalosporin
antibiotics industry and a year-over-year decrease in the usage growth of
antibacterial medicines during the past three years. In such highly
pressured industry environment, the cephalosporin antibiotics business
of the Group had not yet been substantively improved.

As for the system specific medicines of the Group, in general, supported
by the past efforts in building the sales network, the sales of this series of
products could still remain sound. During the reporting period, the sales
volume of the major varieties of the system specific medicines increased
at a double-digital growth rate year-on-year. Meanwhile, growth in the
total profits from all the major varieties of the system specific medicines
outperformed the Group’s expectations, whereby making significant
contribution to the profits of the Group.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.068 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2013, amounting to the total sum
of approximately HK$54,683,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB43,365,000), to the shareholders whose names appeared in the
register of members as of Friday, 30 May 2014 subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming 2014 Annual General Meeting (the
“2014 AGM”). Taking into consideration the interim dividend of HK$0.02
per share, the total annual dividend distributed for the year is HK$0.088
per share. The dividend payout ratio is approximately 36.6%.
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In 2013, the global economic situation remained complex and tough. In
developed countries, the economy was lack of vitality in a sluggish
recovery; followed by an explosive growth, emerging economies were
entering the stage of adjustment. Faced with the weak global economy,
China’s export-driven economy was more or less affected, which in turn
caused China to encourage domestic consumption with an aim to
maintain a moderate economic growth.

Amongst a number of consumption industries, benefiting from the
supportive policies of the central government and supported by other
various favorable social factors, the business capacity of China’s medical
and health care industry, along with its related industries, expanded at an
impressive annual growth rate. Compared with other manufacturing
industries, the business environment for China’s pharmaceutical
manufacturing industry remained in good conditions in 2013. Despite
this, as directed by the governmental policies, China’s pharmaceutical
enterprises must face the operating pressure from the bidding and
tendering of essential drugs, price reduction and more stringent
regulatory requirements. However, driven by a package of reforms,
China’s pharmaceutical market will continue to expand its horizontal and
vertical coverage, which in turn will create room and opportunities for the
growth and development of resourceful and competent pharmaceutical
enterprises.

As the main body of the national medical and health care system, China’s
public hospitals are the major force to provide the public with basic
medical and health care services. Since the initialization of pharmaceutical
and healthcare reform, the central government has proactively banished
the mechanism of “using overly costly drug prescriptions to subsidize
hospital’s medical services” which has long been implemented in the
hospital system, by formulating and implementing the regulation over the
price of medical care services on the one hand and by cracking down on
improper operating means and conducts in the pharmaceutical markets
on the other, so as to lower the costs of intermediate links. The market
believes that the central government will continue to accelerate the
reform. China’s pharmaceutical enterprises must review and adjust their
respective marketing strategies to correctly respond to the ever-changing
market environment.
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Subsequent to the implementation of new GMP, China’s pharmaceutical
enterprises must build new workshops or adjust and restructure the
existing ones in accordance with all the requirements. Given the stringent
requirements, all the relevant projects need huge fiscal resources and
manpower. In addition, after the workshops are licensed and put into
operation, these enterprises will face heavy operating expenses. The
implementation of new GMP, together with other factors including the
price reduction of pharmaceuticals and declined profit margins etc., can
be considered as the comprehensive check and test on the their
capacities in financial position, financing and management. Against this
backdrop, there are expectations in the market that some of
pharmaceutical enterprises may back out of such relevant projects and
shut down their business due to their financial position.

Looking forward to 2014, although the market capacity will continue to
grow as a result of various supportive government policies and favorable
social drivers, an increasing number of pharmaceutical manufacturers
have entered or plan to enter the specific medicines market in all the
medical treatment fields, the competition of which the Group expects to
be increasing fierce in the future. Furthermore, by the restrictions of the
marketing models and due to the fact that pharmaceutical enterprises
have to shoulder the operating expenses for workshops that passed the
new GMP certification, the Group will act seriously to face the operating
pressure arising from a number of unstable factors. The Group will double
its efforts to better management, marketing, and risk control, while
practically implementing research and development work for the system
specific medicines from the perspective of the product level and market
positioning according to its own conditions. As for the cephalosporin
antibiotics, the Group will use best efforts to maintain local market and
brands, while acting appropriately to adjust the business structure of the
international market, to broaden the source of profits of the cephalosporin
series products. In general, under the condition that the central
government and the society will continue to invest resources, the Group
remains fully confident in the business development in 2014.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREE

APPRECIATION 2|

The Group fully understands the future development foundation, trend, — ZR&EE 7D iR B EY) TS R KA 2R E R - B
and requirements of the China pharmaceutical market. Led by Ms. Huang ~ Z3K - AAQA B ZTRHELE L L (FBEREARARTR
Dongmei, the Company’s newly appointed Chief Executive Officer (the —Z—P0FE—A+=H A M) ‘8 B EEE SR
particulars are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 13 BEEHKLIER  HERGNINER - AREFZFIAEN
January 2014), the management team will continue to develop operations & & [0l o

at home and abroad in a sound and pragmatic operating style, so as to

seek reasonable returns for our shareholders.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heart-felt gratitude for — FEt#e » RA RO AR QR SIE » EBAEE &
the all-out efforts in coordination and support from our shareholders, &%  EEAEBNTERELBE—FHRAILED
business partners, directors, all management personnel and all staff for & hE&MHE -

my work in the previous year.

By Order of the Board AEEEm

Li Kei Ling FHR®

Chairman TE

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014 B —ZE-MWFE=A+N\B
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Following 2013, the PRC continues deepening the pharmaceutical and
healthcare reform, and thoroughly promotes the “Twelfth Five-year” Plan
for the pharmaceutical industry. Now the public hygiene services system,
medical services system, medical security system, and drugs supply
security system, which cover residents in both urban and rural areas, are
gradually established to further expand the consumers’ demand and
improve the use of medicines. Besides, China also continues to introduce
the policies to support the medical reform, including promoting to
improve the national system for basic medicines, separation of medical
service and pharmaceutical sales, reassessment of generic drugs and
continued promotion of the new GMP certification. As a nation with a
large population, China experiences the acceleration of aging process in
cities. Moreover, due to an improving medical security system, residents’
stronger ability to pay, the public’s increasing desire of for health is
gradually releasing. China is still one of the fastest growing regions in the
world in terms of the consumption of pharmaceuticals.

In such broad environment, the Group has centralized resources to
develop its system specific medicine portfolio led by cardiovascular
drugs, and continued to optimize the corporate distribution and
marketing network, thereby solidifying its leading position among the
hospitals and retail markets in respect of cardiovascular drugs and drugs
for treating hepatitis B. After the reformation of several cephalosporin
workshops, the Group adjusted the production scale of its cephalosporin
products in a reasonable manner to meet sales demands. With respect
to the new GMP certification, the work at Hedong Industrial Park for the
new GMP certification was passed, thus laying down a solid foundation
for the scale development of the Group’s specific medicines. In addition,
the work of cephalosporin key products for the new GMP certification
had been completed. The Group had endeavored to promote the
expansion into overseas markets while enhancing its product quality, and
had smoothly completed the quality auditing by several overseas
purchasers and official authorities. The Group had gradually accumulated
experience and technologies, and gained a good knowledge of the rules
of the international markets, which had placed a sound base for the
products of the Group to participate global competition with other generic
drugs.
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For the period ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s production and
sales volume of intermediates and bulk medicines decreased by 12.96%
and 0.14% respectively, compared with the same period of last year. The
production and sales volume of cephalosporin powder for injection
decreased by 11.9% and 23.1% respectively, compared with the same
period of last year. The decreases were mainly due to the two factors
including impacts of the national adjustment policies on antibiotic
products and reduction in production volume because of kick-off of the
Group’s adaptive renovation of GMP workshops in the second half of the
year. The production and sales volume of the solid-dosage-forms
increased by 38.1% and 25.5% respectively, compared with the same
period of last year. The distribution network of the “An” series varieties,
being led by the major product “Anneizhen” (Z W& ) (Amlodipine
Besylate Tablets), had been constantly improved. With the strengthening
of sales and marketing efforts and over years of academic promotion and
clinic application, the curative effect, quality and safety of the products
had been fully certificated, and had received high recognition in the
professional community. Its market presence was increasing on the
existing leading basis, with production and sales volume increased by
43.6% and 26.7% respectively, compared with the same period of last
year. The production and sales volume of “Leiyide” (& 5 13) (Entecavir
Dispersible Tablets) increased by 46.6% and 49.9% respectively,
compared with the same period of last year.
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In 2013, a total of 36 declarations for registration were filed to the State
and/or Provincial Food and Drug Administration (including declaration of
chemical drug production for 2 items in class 6, supplementary
application for 29 items and re-registration for 5 items). 26 supplementary
approval documents and 8 re-registration approval documents were
obtained.

The patents for two inventions which have been authorized include:

The “preparation method of dual slow-release potassium citrate sustained
release preparation” was authorized on 1 May 2013, and the
authorization number is ZL201110433102.9; and

The “pharmaceutical composition containing prulifloxacin and the
production method thereof” was authorized on 30 October 2013, and the
authorization number is Z1.201110127310.6.

(1) InJuly 2013, the anti-hypertensive medicine — the research project
of Telmisartan Amlodipine Besylate Tablets was granted the
Jiangsu Provincial Technology Support Plan.

(2)  In September 2013, the research project of Telmisartan Tablets
and its ingredient was granted the National Torch Plan.

(3)  In November 2013, “Anneizhen” (% A &) (Amlodipine Besylate
Tablets) was jointly recognized by five industry associations
including China Pharmaceutical Industry Association as the
excellent product brand in cardio-cerebrovascular category of the
Chinese pharmaceutical manufacturing industry in 2013.
Meanwhile, Suzhou Dawnways Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was
recognized as one of the top 100 best industry enterprises in terms
of comprehensive strength in China’s pharmaceutical industry in
2013.

(4)  In November 2013, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
was recognized by the Suzhou Municipal Law Enforcement
Leadership Team for Municipal Governance (&1 T4 A G 48 E
/[N#H) as the advanced enterprise of honest and law-abiding for
2012.

(5)  In December 2013, Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science
and Technology Co., Ltd. was recognized by Nantong Municipal
Commission of Economy and Information Technology and Nantong
Municipal Bureau of Finance as the Nantong Municipal Enterprise
Technology Centre.
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The new GMP certification was completed at Phase | of Hedong
Industrial Park of Suzhou Dawnways Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

The adaptive renovation for relevant workshops was normally conducted
at Suzhou Dawnways Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

China’s pharmaceutical industry will have the following favorable factors
in the next few years:

Under the guidance of “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, the medical system
reform will be further deepened, while the government support for
the pharmaceutical sector will be further enhanced. In addition, the
gradual improvement of new GMP, GSP and other industry
standards will engine the stable and reasonable growth of the
pharmaceutical sector.

The medicine consumption has entered into a diversified era, with
substantially increased consumption levels and increasing enriched
consumption methods. The population in medicine consumption
will be further increased, leading to persistent growth in the market
demand. Overall, the pharmaceutical industry will continue to grow
steadlily.

The international bulk medicine market will gradually pick up in
2014. There is still rigid and positive demand for China’s bulk
medicines in the international market. It is unlikely to replace the
position of China’s antibiotics in the international market in the short
term as their price maintains competitive advantage.

The key work of the Group in 2014:

1)
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The Group’s management will continue to optimize and unify the
Group’s business strategies, reinforce management, introduce
talent, and strengthen the construction of teams and marketing
networks.

The solid preparation workshop in Hedong Industrial Park
commenced full production after passing the new GMP
certification. It is expected that the workshop will become the
Group’s base for the production of high-margin products. As such,
the Group will integrate and expand marketing teams and optimize
the hierarchical marketing network for system specific medicines,
to improve its overall competitiveness.
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In the year 2014, the Group will input more efforts in the screening
of new products that will be put into R&D, accelerate the R&D
process of new products, and strive to launch new products with
high potentials, high technological content, and high value addition.
By doing so, the Group will covert R&D into products with real
values and so to expect that this will lay a solid foundation for the
sustainable growth of the Group’s profits and the long-term
sustainable development of the Group.

Leveraging on the pickup window of bulk medicines, the Group will
boost the export of bulk medicines by expanding international
regulated markets, and strengthen cooperation with advanced
international pharmaceutical companies. In addition, the Group will
explore ways to export system specific medicines to Europe, South
America and Southeast Asia markets.

With the deepening reform of the medical and healthcare system
as well as the essential drug system, tendering and bidding will be
critical in the year 2014. The Group has established a special
Market Bidding Department to positively act and grasp
opportunities and improve winning rate in bidding businesses.
Meanwhile, the Group will actively explore the medical terminal
markets and develop the third terminals in order to seize more
market shares.

The Group will fully tap into the competitive edges of anti-
hypertensive drugs and boost the branding and market shares of
“An” series cardiovascular drugs. In the meantime, the Group will
engine the steady growth of outstanding products such as “Leiyide”
(F 5 18) (Entecavir Dispersible Tablets) and “Xikewei” (7§ 7] &)
(Cetirizine Hydrochloride Tablets), so that system specific medicines
will continue to be a solid foundation for the Group to make profits.

Implementation of the new GMP will cause the comprehensive
operating costs of the Group to rise. Therefore, the Group will
seriously address such impacts, hold on to quality, improve
technology, enhance cost control, optimize business flows, push
ahead with energy saving and consumption reduction, while
increasing income and reducing expenditures, in order to alleviate
the pressure on its operation and strengthen its market
competitiveness.
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SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB914,973,000, representing an increase of 6.8%
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The turnover,
increased by RMB58,434,000, of which sales of system specific
medicines increased by approximately RMB95,646,000, representing an
increase of 31% compared with the corresponding period of last year.
Sales of the cephalosporin antibiotics product line decreased by
RMB36,340,000, representing a decrease of 6.8% compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

Sales amount of finished drugs, comprising system specific medicines,
powder for injection and tablets of cephalosporin and other oral solid-
dosage-forms of antibiotics, reached approximately RMB550,155,000.
Sales amount of finished drugs, accounted for total turnover, was
approximately 60.1% which was increased by 4.2 percentage points
compared with the corresponding period of last year. Sales amount of
the “An” (%) series for treating hypertension accounted for 45.5% of
sales of finished drugs. Sales amount of “Leiyide” (& 515 ) for treating
hepatitis B accounted for 19.5% of sales of finished drugs. Sales amount
of “Xikewei” (FA] &) and “Xikexin” (F A #) for treating allergies
accounted for 6.4% of sales of finished drugs.

Among the cephalosporin antibiotics product line, sales amount of
intermediates and bulk medicines slightly decreased by 3.4% compared
with the corresponding period of last year. As for finished drugs, sales
amount of cephalosporin powder for injection declined by 19.4%
compared with the corresponding period of last year, and sales amount
of oral cephalosporin increased by 40.1% compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

Export sales amount accounted for approximately 9.9% of the total
turnover.

Gross profit was approximately RMB403,248,000 which was increased
by RMB78,853,000, representing an increase of 24.3%. Gross profit
margin was increased by 6.2 percentage points to 44.1% from 37.9% as
in the corresponding period of last year. The main reason for the increase
in gross profit margin was attributable to further optimization of product
portfolio. The sales of high gross profit system specific medicines
maintained steady growth continually. Sales amount of “Leiyide”
increased by 42.8% compared with the corresponding period of last
year. Sales amount of “An” (%) series increased by 27.6% compared
with the corresponding period of last year.
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Product Turnover (RMB’000) Sales Breakdown (%)
Em EXH(AR%ETR) SHELLBI (%)

Changes
(percentage
2013 2012 Changes 2013 2012 points)
—¥-=f ZT-ZF g/ —%-=Ff -T--% (B7%)
Intermediates and Bulk Medicines e K Rk a 364,818 377,531 -12,713 39.9 441 -4.2
Finished Drugs Bk 2 550,155 479,008 71,147 60.1 55.9 4.2
Overall b 914,973 856,539 58,434 100.0 100.0 0.0

During the year, the total expenses incurred were approximately
RMB231,479,000, equivalent to 25.3% of turnover (2012: 22.7%). The
total expenses increased by approximately RMB37,351,000 compared
with the corresponding period of last year which was RMB194,128,000.
The increase was mainly due to a year-on-year increase of
RMB8,038,000 in the selling expenses and increase in impairment of
equipment for GMP adaptive renovation.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, segment results of intermediates
and bulk medicines segment recorded losses of approximately
RMB15,984,000. The increase of loss by RMB13,931,000 compared
with the corresponding period of last year was mainly due to the adaptive
renovation of the production workshops in line with new GMP
requirements which increased losses from the suspension of operations
and provision for impairment of equipment. The segment profit of finished
drugs segment was approximately RMB290,059,000, which was
increased by approximately RMB68,113,000 when compared with the
corresponding period of last year which was RMB221,946,000 .

For the year ended 31 December 2013, profit attributable to owners of
the parent amounted to approximately RMB153,099,000, equivalent to
an increase of RMB38,593,000 or 33.7% compared with the
corresponding period of last year. Such substantial increase was mainly
because the sales of system specific medicines still maintained fast
growth.
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As at 31 December 2013, net assets attributable to owners of the parent
were approximately RMB1,091,737,000. The return on net assets, which
is defined as the profit attributable to owners of the parent divided by net
assets attributable to owners of the parent, was 14.0% (2012: 11.7%).
The current ratio and quick ratio was 1.71 and 1.45 respectively.
Turnover days for trade receivables were approximately 60 days. The
turnover days for trade receivables including notes receivables were 154
days. Turnover days for inventory were approximately 119 days.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB205,771,000 (as at 31 December 2012:
RMB155,694,000). During the year, the net cash flows from operating
activities was approximately RMB231,262,000 (2012: RMB203,624,000).
Net cash flows used in investing activities was approximately
RMB83,066,000 (2012: RMB109,329,000). Net cash flows used in
financing activities was approximately RMB95,130,000 (2012:
RMB34,804,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had aggregate bank facilities of
approximately RMB913,073,000 (as at 31 December 2012:
RMB1,074,813,000), of which, bank facilities of HK$153,850,000 were
secured by corporate guarantee of the Company or its subsidiaries. Of
the aggregate bank facilities, including a mortgage loan of
HK$13,643,000 and short term bank loans of HK$303,750,000 in total,
which were subject to the arrangement of floating interest rate. The loan
interest rate ranged from HIBOR plus 1% to 1.5%. The time deposits of
approximately RMB257,107,000 were pledged to bank to secure
captioned short term bank loans. As at 31 December 2013, the debt
ratio (defined as sum of interest-bearing bank loans over total assets) of
the Group was 14.4% (as at 31 December 2012: 12.9%).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had the inventory balance of
RMB155,887,000 (as at 31 December 2012: RMB182,918,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s capital commitments amounted to
approximately RMB91,355,000 (as at 31 December 2012:
RMB153,050,000), which mainly derived from the construction for the
workshop for non-cephalosporin solid-dosage-forms preparation in
Hedong Industrial Park of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
and the new GMP reconstruction works for cephalosporin powder for
injection workshop and cephalosporin bulk medicines workshop. The
Group has sufficient financial and internal resources to bear the capital
expenditure.

Save as aforesaid disclosure, the Group had no significant external

investments or material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year.
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As the Group’s substantial business activities, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, the risk derived from the foreign exchange to
the Group is not high. The treasury policy of the Group is to manage any
risk of foreign exchange or interest rate (if any) only if it will potentially
impose a significant impact on the Group. The Group continues to
observe the foreign exchange and interest rate market, and may hedge
against foreign currency risk with foreign exchange forward contracts and
interest rate risk with interest rate swap contracts if necessary.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 1,110
employees and the total remuneration was approximately
RMB102,459,000 (2012: RMB90,563,000). The Group regards human
resources as the most valuable assets and truly understands the
importance of attracting and retaining high-performance employees. The
remuneration policy is generally based on the references of market salary
index and individual qualifications. The Group provides its employees with
other fringe benefits, including defined contribution retirement schemes,
share option scheme and medical coverage. The Group also offers some
of its employees stationed in the PRC with dormitory accommodation.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s assets with net book value of
approximately RMB285,320,000 were pledged to banks to secure credit
facilities granted to its subsidiaries (as at 31 December 2012:
RMB189,427,000).

As disclosed in the Company’s 2012 annual report, a subsidiary of the
Group was officially served for two litigation cases of disputes over the
balance payment for a construction project in 2012. As at 31 December
2013, the court-appointed auditors were auditing the final accounting for
the completion of the project in accordance with the data confirmed by
both sides of the plaintiff and defendant, including the relative completed
final drawings and works contact records. On 17 February 2014, the
subsidiary received auditors’ verification report of completion of the
project. As there still have many arguments in the report which will be
determined by the court, the Group is currently unable to make reliable
estimation with reasonable accuracy regarding the outcome of such
litigations.

Save as aforesaid disclosure, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEMWESH

PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND
EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Save for those disclosed above in connection with capital commitments
under the section “Liquidity and Financial Resources”, the Group does
not have any plan for material investments or acquisition of capital assets.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out in note 3 to the financial statement.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) believes that corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). Good corporate governance can safeguard
the interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. Therefore,
the Board has adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard
of corporate governance is maintained.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Ltd. (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December
2013, except for the following deviations:

All Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on
24 May 2013 other than one Independent Non-executive Director, Mr.
Choi Tat Ying Jacky, who was not in position to attend the AGM due to
business engagement.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the
accounting period covered by the 2013 annual report.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The management has been delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

No corporate governance committee has been established and so the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.
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The Board held 13 board meetings including 6 regular meetings and 7
ad-hoc meetings during the year ended 31 December 2013. The regular
board meetings were to consider, among other things, reviewing and
approving the interim and annual results of the Group, overall group
strategy, annual budgets, approval of major capital transactions and
other significant operational and financial matters. The ad-hoc meetings
were convened when circumstance required such as review and approve
capital expenses for production facilities, granting share option to
employee and review bank facilities for subsidiaries.

Details of the attendance of Directors at board meetings, annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) and three other board committees’
meetings (the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee) during the year 2013 are set out in the
following table:

EEeNEE_T—=Ft_A=+t—HUEFEARER
TTZRETEE  BEAREHEEFEHRNLRE
REFEH THERITZE (el B RitE
FEBTPHRDFRE  BEBOERK FERE #t
BEBEREARGREMBEREERMBEE - BREH
EHEBREFTEROIME BRI ELERBOEARS -
BErBlRigaREREHNNBARZBRITERARMA

RIZB—ZF ZEENEFESHE  ARRAKRESF
RE(BRRBFAEDESI=-AEEZESSH(E
BZEg RAZBSNFMNZES)HHEFHBIER

No. of meetings attended/held
SRHLERE BTRY

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board AGM Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEHR EEEe RRBEFXAE ERZEEE REZEE FHZEEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Li Kei Ling (Chairman) THRZLT(FE) 13/13 11 3/3 2/3
Mr. Hung Yung Lai AERLIE LA 10/13 1/1
Mr. Li Tung Ming ZHRAASLAE 12/13 11
Mr. Gao Vi =R EE 10/13 11
Non-executive Director HBITEE 11
Mr. Leung Hong Man ZERLE 5/13 11
Independent Non-executive BIHNTEF
Directors 1%
Mr. Pan Xue Tian HERTAE 9/13 11 3/3 2/3 3/3
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky ORI A 8/13 o 3/3 3/3 3/3
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony B[R] 5 7/13 11 3/3 3/3 3/3
At least 14 days notice of regular board meeting is given to all Directors. EZFeTHEHMNESRERETHRL THXFIERT
The agenda and board papers are sent to the Directors at least 3 days &EZ-EEZEREETZETeHNRERBHE S
before the meetings of the Board and board committees so that the X @ ELEFBAEH-RAEXITERES FRES

Directors have the time to review the documents. Directors can include
matters for discussion in the agenda if the need arises. Minutes of
meetings of the Board and board committees are recorded in sufficient
details that matters considered and decisions reached. The draft and final
versions of the minutes will be sent to Directors within a reasonable time
after the meetings. Minutes of meetings of the Board and board
committees are kept by the company secretary of the Company and
open for inspection on reasonable notice by any Director.
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All Directors are entitled to have unrestricted access to the advice and
service of the company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Upon
reasonable request and appropriate circumstances, Directors can seek
independent professional advice to assist them to discharge their duties,
at the Company’s expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board had determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by holding a board meeting
with the presence of disinterested Independent Non-executive Directors
or a meeting of a board committee set up for that purpose pursuant to a
resolution passed in a board meeting.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective on 1 September
2013. The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
educational background, ethnicity, working experience, professional
skills, knowledge and length of service. All board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates would bring to the Board.

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, of whom three are
Executive Directors, one is Non-executive Director and three are
Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition meets the
requirement of the Listing Rules for the Board to have at least one-third in
number of its members comprising Independent Non-executive Directors.
The three Independent Non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
accounting, business management and pharmaceutical industry
respectively. With their experience gained from senior positions held in
other organisations, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. The biographies
of the Directors are set out in pages 31 to 35 to the 2013 annual report,
which demonstrates the skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the three Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
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Ms. Li Kei Ling, the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Hung Yung Lai,
one of the Executive Directors, are directors and ultimate shareholders of
several private companies incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin
Islands.

Save as disclosed above, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.
The balanced Board composition is formed to ensure strong
independence exits across the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgement.

Directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are willing to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board remains
informed and relevant.

The Directors are committed to complying with the CG Code A.6.5 on
Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development and provided a record of training they received
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended
31 December 2013 is set out below:

Briefings and updates on
the business, operations,

EFESIRFHRLEIMAEP (ATEFRRBMELE
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B BRNERREEEEFSHAREZBLIL  eHE
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BETHMBEEERR BN TRBERLEHHM
BIEGEE  URRHEETEBEAEMRIEREZ
BRATRESSELER °

BEAKETERTAEACSKEREREI RE=E
TE=F+-A=t+-HIFE 2REFHHEZH
FESXER  YEAARRRHEMER ZEIRE -

RBE-T-=F+-A=T-BILFE SEERE
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Attending or participating
in seminars/

conferences relevant

to the business/
directors’ duties

and corporate
governance matters

BRXK  EER HERSMEEYE
Directors BEE TCEEREECEBRREYN ESRSAEEE g3
Ms. Li Kei Ling FH% 7+ v v
Mr. Hung Yung Lai REEhfE A v v
Mr. Li Tung Ming FHRAASLAE v
Mr. Gao Vi St 4 v
Mr. Leung Hong Man 2RERE v
Mr. Pan Xue Tian ESEEE v
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky EER g v
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony BRI A v
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The nomination committee will consider the appointment of new Directors
first by reviewing the profiles of the candidates and making
recommendations to the Board. New Directors appointed by the Board
during the year to fill a casual vacancy shall retire and submit themselves
for re-election at the first general meeting immediately followed their
appointment.

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two years and
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”).

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office
according to the Company’s Articles. As the Company has seven
Directors, at least one third of them shall retire subject to rotation, and
barring unforeseen resignation/retirement during a year, each Director is
effectively appointed for an average term of not more than 3 years. Ms. Li
Kei Ling, Mr. Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky will retire at the
forthcoming AGM. Al retiring Directors are eligible for re-election.

Under the code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, serving more than nine
years could be relevant to the determination of a non-executive director’s
independence and that any further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Mr. Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky have been appointed as
the Company’s Independent Non-executive Directors since June 2003
and September 2004 respectively. Their further appointment should be
subject to separate resolutions to be approved by shareholders. By
taking into account of their independent status in the Board in the past
years, and that they are not involved in the day-to-day management of
the Company, the Board believes Mr. Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Choi Tat
Ying Jacky are still independent and should be re-elected as the
Company’s Independent Non-executive Directors; such reason shall be
set out in the circular of the 2014 AGM for shareholders’ consideration.

Every newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his first appointment to have a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the
business and governance policies of the Company. The Directors
endeavour to give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs and
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, business
and market changes and the strategic development of the Group to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in Board
meetings, contribute to the development of strategies and policies and
make sound and independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standard
of conduct. They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They are also members of various board committees and scrutinize the
overall performance of the Group in achieving agreed corporate goals
and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board with monthly
updates and adequate information to enable it to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it. Where any Director requires more
information than is volunteered by the management, each Director has
separate and independent access to the Group’s management to make
further enquires if necessary. Where queries are raised by Directors,
management will respond as promptly and fully as possible.

The roles of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer
(the “CEQ”) of the Company are separated and are performed by two
separate individuals who have no relationship with each other to strike a
balance of power and authority so that the job responsibilities are not
concentrated on any one individual. The Board has appointed Ms. Li Kei
Ling as the Chairman. She has executive responsibilities and provides
leadership to the Board such as ensuring all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and received complete and reliable
information in a timely manner so that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities.

During the year 2013, Mr. Gao Yi was the Executive director and CEO of
the Company. Ms. Huang Dongmei was appointed as the Company’s
CEO to succeed Mr. Gao Yi with effect from 9 March 2014. CEO is
delegated with the authority and responsibility for managing the Group’s
business operation and implementing the development strategies. CEO
will periodically present the updated market situation, long term strategies
and objectives of the Group, quarterly results to the Board at the Board
meeting. Variances analysis between the actual performances and the
budget targets are explained in the meeting. This helps the Board to
monitor the Group’s business operations and to amend the targets when
required. In addition, CEO will also present the coming year budget
summary to the Board for approval at the Board meeting held in
December each year.
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The management provides explanation and information to the Board so
as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the approval by the Board.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and annual
financial statements and announcements to shareholders. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing
the accounts.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to the regulators as well as the information required to be
disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.

The responsibilities of the auditors to the shareholders are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 48 and 49.

The Board has delegated to management the implementation of internal
control system as well as the review of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls, and risk management procedures.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the Group’s
assets against loss and misappropriation; to maintain proper accounting
records for producing reliable financial information; to provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against material fraud and errors. The Group
has clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
business and operational unit to ensure adequate checks and balances.
Policies are established to ensure compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, and industry standards. Rules and guidelines are set to
control treasury activities, financial and management reporting, human
resources functions and computer systems’ operations. Systems and
procedures are also established to identify, measure, manage and control
different risks arising from different business and functional activities.

The Board monitors and reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of its
internal control systems through a programme of internal audit. The
internal audit function is set up by the Company to review the major
operational and financial control of the Group in compliance with the
established processes and standards on a continuing basis and aims to
cover all major operations of the Group on a rotational basis. The internal
audit team reports directly to the Chairman of the Board and the Audit
Committee.
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The Board also monitors and assesses the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget on an
ongoing basis.

Based on the assessments made by the internal audit team in 2013, the
Board and the audit committee of the Company considered that the key
areas of the Group’s internal control system are reasonably implemented
with room for improvement. The Group shall endeavor to further improve
the Company’s internal control system.

The day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
management by the Board, with division heads responsible for individual
department’s daily operations.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to
the management include the preparation of interim and annual reports
and announcements for the Board’s approval before publishing,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

The Board has established the nomination committee, remuneration
committee and audit committee. The committees’ terms of references
defined their functions and responsibilities have posted on the
Company’s website.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2013, the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s
chairman, and the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Pan
Xue Tian, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony as the
committee’s members. The Nomination Committee ’'s terms of reference
are summarized as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skill,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to nominate for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board
vacancies as and where they arise;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members

and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(v)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

During the year 2013, the Nomination Committee had three meetings to
review the renewal of Directors’ service contracts.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2013, the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) had Mr. Pan Xue Tian, an Independent
Non-executive Director, as the committee’s chairman, Ms. Li Kei Ling,
and two Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky
and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony, as the committee’s members. The
Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference are summarized as
follows:

(i) to recommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure of
all Directors and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i)  to determine with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management;

(i)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment;

(iv) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(v)  to ensure that no Director or any of her/his associates is involved in
deciding her/his own remuneration.

The Group’s remuneration policy bases on the market practice, the
qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees. In
order to attract, retain, and motivate high-performance persons, the
Company has adopted share option scheme to reward those participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

Details of the amount of Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments are set out in note 7 to the financial statements and the
details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate emoluments

HE-Z—=F+-_A1 :JF*EJtﬁFE CENEREE

payable to members of senior management were within the following B E Z HEIN FIA T E
bands:
Number of individuals
A"
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T 2= 1,000,000 7T 6
The Remuneration Committee had three meetings in 2013 to determine RZ-Z— =% HFHEESRIT T ARZNETHR
the salary adjustment of senior management. EEE TR -

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) which
was established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who among
themselves possess a wealth of management experience in the
accounting profession, commercial and pharmaceutical sectors.

As at 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee’s chairman was Mr. Choi
Tat Ying Jacky, Mr. Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony were the
committee’s members. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are
summarized as follows:

(i) to consider and recommend to the board the independence,
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

(i) to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(iiy  to review financial information; and

(v) to oversee financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.

During the year 2013, the Audit Committee had three meetings to
discuss financial reporting matters and any areas of concerns during the
audits. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance
with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements
in the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2013 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee before
recommending them to the Board for approval.
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Ernst and Young has been reappointed as the Company’s external
auditors at the AGM on 24 May 2013 until the conclusion of the next
AGM. During the year 2013, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s external auditor in respect of services provided are as
follows:

Fees for audit services amounted to RMB1,200,000.

Fees for non-audit services amounted to RMB75,000.

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting
following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards, proposing a person for election as a director, please refer to
the procedures available on the websites of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company establishes and maintains different
communication channels with its shareholders through the publication of
annual and interim reports and press release. Our corporate website
which contains corporate information, corporate governance practice,
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars issued by the
Company enables the Company’s shareholders to have timely and
updated information of the Company.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board attends the
AGM and arranges the chairman of the committees or in the absence of
the chairman of such committees, another member of the committees to
be available to answer questions at the AGM. The Chairman proposes
separate resolutions for each issue to be considered, including the
election of Directors, and put each proposed resolution to the vote by
way of a poll. Voting results are posted on the Company’s website on the
day of AGM.

30

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED o 3 im&% (12

%) BIRA

ERRNEE
EEERREMBERRAERMNBBERER - ARF
RIUTNRARERTEBRRBRE  BETHNFERS - P
HMmERNER  ARRZHUERERRER  BEE
AER  ARRTEZTHAREERS  AEMEK
EARRABIRA REHIBARR Z K EH

ARRIMBERBFASRHESSAREFTTERER
REB BFEEIREFBRRAFARE  YRHEES
BETZEENEIF NEXZFZREENIFRERAS
—HEREERBERRBFAG LEERRE - TFEME
BBV 2HERNRIABRUMES  REERES
WHEBEREZRBRARETRNETRR - REXRR
ZRERPBRBFERE ARAR R L& -



Ms. LI, Kei Ling, aged 65, is an Executive Director and the Chairman of
the Company, and one of the founders of the Group. Ms. Li founded the
Group in December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October
2002. Ms. Li is also the Chairman of Dawnrays International Co. Ltd.,
Dawnrays International Co. Ltd. (R ¥ B8 B i% 19 A& BR 2 71), Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Guangdong Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd.,
which are all subsidiaries of the Company. She is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Ms. Li has over twenty years of experience in corporate management,
strategic planning, business operations and finance, in particular for
pharmaceutical enterprises in the PRC. She is responsible for supervising
the strategic management decisions to ensure good corporate
governance practices and business policies are established, and
executing the overall developmental strategies of the Group.

Mr. HUNG, Yung Lai, aged 69, is an Executive Director of the Company
and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Hung founded the Group in
December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October 2002. Mr.
Hung also holds directorship in Dawnrays International Co. Ltd.,
Dawnrays International Co. Ltd. (R ¥ B B i% 19 A& BR 2 71), Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Guangdong Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which
are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a degree from /&
F 48P (Shanghai Conservatory of Music). He has over twenty years of
experience in corporate management and corporate development, and
has participated in founding and managing of pharmaceutical and high-
tech enterprises. Mr. Hung is an executive director and the chairman of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Ltd., a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LI, Tung Ming, aged 65, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Group in April 2000 and was appointed to the Board in
January 2004. Mr. Li also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science
and Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd.,
which are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is also the supervisor of
Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
and Guangdong Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., both are
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li has over twenty years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry in the PRC, and began his career in
product development, promotion, sales and corporate management in
the pharmaceutical market in the PRC in 1980. Mr. Li is responsible for
liaison with the Group’s academic network of medical experts and
academic advisers and assists in new product development of the
Group.
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Mr. LEUNG, Hong Man, aged 39, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group and was appointed to the Board in
November 2005. Mr. Leung has started his business career in knitting
machinery since 1993. He has over 10 years experience in sales and
management and also over 10 years experience in finance and property
investments. In recent years, Mr. Leung has strived to exploit business in
hi-tech agriculture and arts and cultural industries. Mr. Leung currently is
the shareholder and the director of Toyo International Investment Ltd., of
which has been one of the substantial shareholders (as required to be
disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) of the
Company since September 2005.

Mr. PAN, Xue Tian, aged 77, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Pan joined the Group in June 20083. He is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan has
extensive experience in drug administration and supervision, medical
hygiene and hospital management, and has assumed various senior
management positions in the Ministry of Health of the PRC. He graduated
from the medicine faculty of 7 B K328 % 27 (Dalian Medical University
of the PRC).

Mr. CHOI, Tat Ying Jacky, aged 45, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Choi joined the Group in September 2004.
He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company respectively. Mr. Choi has extensive experience in financial and
treasury management, corporate finance, investment and audit. He
earned his Bachelor degree of Business Administration from Hong Kong
Baptist University with a first class honours in 1990. Mr. Choi is a
practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and currently serving as the chief financial officer of Hong
Kong Mercantile Exchange Ltd.

Mr. LO, Tung Sing Tony, aged 45, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in October 2010. He is
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company respectively. Mr. Lo has
extensive experience in financial management and business development
in Hong Kong and multinational companies. He obtained his Bachelor
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Master of Science in Financial Management from The
University of London. Mr. Lo is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a full member of CPA
Australia. He currently holds the position of Financial Controller (Customer
& Marketing, Betting and IT) at The Hong Kong Jockey Club.
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Dr. XU, Kehan, aged 41, is a Strategic Adviser of the Company. He
joined the Group in November 2003 and was an Executive Director and
the Finance Director of the Company between March 2004 and March
2007. Dr. Xu advises the Company’s investor relations’ policies and other
related tasks. Dr. Xu holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Management from
the Mays Business School at the Texas A&M University, USA and a
Master of Business Administration from the University of Miami, USA
(Specialization in Investments). Dr. Xu also received a Doctor of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. ZHONG, Nan Shan, was invited to join the Group as a Senior
Academic Adviser in April 2004. He graduated from 1t 7 A 22 &8 22 &7
(Beijing Medical University), and pursued his studies in the Respiratory
Medicine Unit of the Royal Infirmary, University of Edinburgh and the
Department of Respiratory Medicine of the St. Bartholomew’s Hospital,
University of London. Mr. Zhong was the president of Chinese Medical
Association. He is currently the academician of The Chinese Academy of
Engineering, the Professor of Internal Medicine in Guangzhou Medical
College, the president of Guangzhou Association of Science and
Technology, the director of Guangzhou Institute of Respiratory Disease
and the director-general of State Key Laboratory of Respiratory Disease.
Mr. Zhong has been a medical adviser of the World Health Organisation
Advisory Panel since 2000. He has written 4 books and published over
120 papers in the last decade. After the battle of Severe Acute
Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”), he was invited as the lecturer in the
annual meeting of American Thoracic Society — “Management of SARS
in China” in Seattle, the United States.

Mr. MEI, Hua, was invited to join the Group as a Senior Academic
Adviser in April 2004. He graduated from J& /)1 2 7 & EB7 (Guangzhou
South China Medical College) and was qualified as the specialist in
urology from 1t 7 &8 B2 B B 25 — B8 B (The First Affiliated Hospital of
Beijing Medical University) and Massachusetts General Hospital, USA. He
has been the adviser and professor of & 111K 22 &8 55 — B BT i PR S0 et
(Department of Urology of The First Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen
University) since 1980 and a director of & JIl A 1L 3% FR 4b Bt 8 B
(Department of Urology of Shenzhen Sun Yat-sen Hospital) since 1986.
Since 1991, he has been the adviser for doctoral candidates in the First
Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University. He was the committee
member of Urological Association of Asia, American Urological
Association and was the committee vice president of H7 Z && B2 & 34 fR S
2@ (The Urological Society of Chinese Medical Association). Mr. Mei
has also written 3 books about urology and surgery.
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Ms. LIU, Li Sheng, was invited to join the Group as a Senior Academic
Adviser in May 2005. She obtained a Bachelor degree of Science in
Biology from Yenching University, Beijing in 1950, and a Doctor of
Medicine from Peking Union Medical College, Beijing in 1954. From 1980
to 1981, she pursued her postdoctoral research in the Cardiovascular
Research and Training Centre, University of Alabama at Birmingham,
USA. She is currently the Professor of Medicine in Fu Wai Hospital,
Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences in Beijing, the director of Clinical
Trials and Research Centre, Chinese Hypertension League in Beijing and
the vice director of the National Center for Cardiovascular Disease
Control & Research in China. She was the president of the Chinese
Society of Cardiology, the president of the Chinese Hypertension League
and the president of Asian Pacific Society of Hypertension. Ms. Liu has
also been the vice president of the World Hypertension League and the
co-chairperson of the Scientific Steering Committee of Global Health
Forum Cardiovascular Disease in Developing Countries, World Health
Organization since 1999. In 2006, Ms. Liu has been elected to be the
president of the World Hypertension League. She is also the chief editor
of the Chinese Journal of Hypertension and the members of a number of
editorial boards of journals in cardiology and hypertension.

Ms. HUANG, Dongmei, aged 50, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, responsible for the daily business operations and management
of the Group. Ms. Huang has over twenty years of experience in
pharmaceutical manufacturing industry and specializes in planning and
management of sales, marketing and business development of
pharmaceutical products. She was the vice general manager of China
sales department of Zhuhai United Laboratories Co., Ltd. and also served
other management positions. Ms. Huang joined the Group in August
2004 and was appointed as Chief Executive Officer effective from 9
March 2014.

Ms. WU, Jihong, aged 43, is the Vice President of the Company and
the Financial Controller of the Group. Ms. Wu is responsible for the
Group’s financial management including financial planning, capital
budgeting, execution of costing, overall budget management and
monitoring, legal affairs and investor relations. Ms. Wu obtained a
Bachelor degree of Science from The Economics and Commercial
Institution of Center-South University with major in Economics and
attained senior accountant qualification in the PRC. She achieved her
MBA degree (EMBA focus) from Fudan University in June 2010. Ms. Wu
has over fifteen years experience in auditing, budgeting, financial
management, corporate banking, taxation, PRC’s taxation regulations
and company law. Ms. Wu joined the Group in July 2003.
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Mr. LAM, Kam Wah, aged 60, is the Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Lam also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and Technology
Co., Ltd., and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all
subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences. Mr. Lam joined
the Group in December 1995 and he has over fifteen years of experience
in pharmaceutical trading and corporate management. Mr. Lam is
involved in managing the Group’s international trade and daily
administration of the Company.

Mr. SU, Guo Qiang, aged 44, is the Vice President of the Company,
responsible for overall production management, quality assurance and
GMP compliance of the Group. Mr. Su graduated from & ;& (b T 2 Fx
(Wuhan Institute of Chemical Technology) in chemical pharmaceutical
profession and is a qualified pharmaceutical engineer. He was the head
of the research centre and the chief engineer of kN5 — 2% (Suzhou
Second Pharmaceutical Factory). He joined the Group in November
2001.

Mr. CHEN, Jian Dong, aged 49, is the Head of Research and
Development of the Group. Mr. Chen is a qualified pharmaceutical
engineer and licensed pharmacist and has a Bachelor degree in Chemical
Pharmacology from China Pharmaceutical University where he spent
three years as an assistant teacher. He was the head of the research
centre and antibiotics workshop manager at %k /| 25 PO &I %5 i (Suzhou
Fourth Pharmaceutical Factory) and the head of the registration section
of the research and development department of &x/H F{b %55 T 2 AR
A 8] (Suzhou Chung-Hwa Chemical & Pharmaceutical Industrial Co.,
Ltd.) before joining the Group in April 2002.

Ms. PANG, Kit Ling, aged 48, is the Company Secretary of the
Company and the supervisor of Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. She is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Pang holds a Master of Arts in
Professional Accounting and Information Systems degree from the City
University of Hong Kong and has over 10 years experience in the fields of
accounting and administration. She joined the Company in July 2003.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) herein present their report and the
audited financial statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
audited financial statements on pages 50 to 133.

An interim dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share was paid on 25
September 2013. The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.068 per ordinary share in respect of the year, to
shareholders on the register of members on 30 May 2014. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as an
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of
financial position.

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out on
page 134. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

During the year, the Group made charitable donation amounting to
RMB285,000.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and land use
rights of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

Details of interest-bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
and note 31 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2013 the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB277,424,000, of which RMB43,365,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. Under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company of approximately
RMB71,245,000 as at 31 December 2013 is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. The share premium account may also be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 33.71% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 11.73%. Purchases from
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 31.19% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 8.62%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Li Kei Ling

Mr. Hung Yung Lai

Mr. Li Tung Ming

Mr. Gao Yi (resigned on 9 March 2014)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Leung Hong Man

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Pan Xue Tian

Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky

Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony

In accordance with the article 87 of the Company’s articles of association
(the “Articles”), Ms. Li Kei Ling, Mr. Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Choi Tat Ying
Jacky will retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (‘AGM”).

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 31 to 35 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Li Kei Ling entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Ms. Li’s service
contract was renewed for a term of three years which commenced on 1
July 2005 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of three years.
Her appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice. Ms. Li is currently entitled to director’s
fee and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$1,159,800 per
year.
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Mr. Hung Yung Lai entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Mr. Hung’s
service contract was renewed for a term of three years which
commenced on 1 July 2005 and will continue thereafter for successive
terms of three years. His appointment is subject to termination by either
party giving not less than three months’ written notice. Mr. Hung is
currently entitled to director’s fee and other remuneration from the Group
totally HK$739,800 per year.

Mr. Li Tung Ming entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 14 January 2004. Mr. Li’s
service contract was renewed on 1 January 2007 for a term of three
years and will continue thereafter for successive terms of three years. His
appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice. Mr. Li is currently entitled to director’s fee
and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$739,800 per year.

Mr. Leung Hong Man entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of two years which commenced on 1 November 2005 and will
continue thereafter for successive terms of two years. His appointment is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice. Mr. Leung is currently entitled to a basic annual
remuneration of HK$120,000. Save for the above director’s fee, Mr.
Leung is not entitled to any other remuneration.

Mr. Pan Xue Tian entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003 and will continue
thereafter for successive terms of two years. Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of two years
which commenced on 30 September 2004 and will continue thereafter
for successive terms of two years. Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years which
commenced on 1 October 2010 and will continue thereafter for
successive terms of two years. Mr. Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr. Lo’s
appointments are subject to termination by either party giving not less
than one month’s written notice. Each of Mr. Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr. Lo is
currently entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$150,000. Save for the
above directors’ fees, the three Independent Non-executive Directors are
not entitled to any other remuneration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group. There is no contract
of significance between the Group, its controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 21 June 2003 (the
“2008 Share Option Scheme”) was expired on 20 June 2013. All other
respects of the provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and holders of all options granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the
outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme until expiry of the said options. As a result, on 24 May 2013, the
shareholders of the Company approved at the annual general meeting a
new share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”), and took
effect immediately on 21 June 2013, which was after the expiry of the
2003 Share Option Scheme. The principal terms of the 2013 Share
Option Scheme and the 2003 Share Option Scheme are similar and are
collectively referred to as the “Scheme”. The detailed disclosures relating
to the Scheme and valuation of options are set out in Note 30 to the
financial statements. The total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme is 91,078,400 shares which representing approximately
11.833% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this
annual report.
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Movements of Company’s share options under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme during the year were as follows:

RER ZET=BRETEPHRRRIEREZ S
™

Closing price of
Number of share options the Company's shares (c)
BEREHE EAARBRTHER ()
Date of
grant of Exercise At
At At share options (a) Exercise period price  immediate
1 January Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 December (dd/mm/yy) of share options of share  date before
2013 during during during 2013 R’ (dc/mm/yy)  options(b)  the grant
Name or category ~ S8 R-E-=f£ the year theyear  theyear(d) R=E-=F£  ERERD[ BRETHEDE BRE RiBRE
of participant EHER -A-B  ERERE  EREAE  EABXN( t=R=t-H (8/R/%) (B/ B/%)  fTE[ED) A-x
HKS HKS
Director 2
Mr. Gao Vi BRRE 400,000 - (400,000) - - 04/04/07 04/04/08-03/04/13 0.71 0.70
800,000 - - - 800,000 25/03/11 26/03/12-24/03117 3.13 314
1,200,000 - (400,000 - 800,000
Other employees ~ EftES
In aggregate a5t 552,000 - (552,000 - - 0404007 04/04/08-03/04/13 071 0.70
580,000 - (580,000) - - 10/07/07 10/07/08-09/07/13 080 080
160,000 - (160,000 - - 01/02/08 01/02/09-31/01/14 0.74 074
800,000 - - - 800,000 09/12/08 09/12/09-08/12/14 0.70 0.71
8,300,000 - - - 8,300,000 26/03/11 26/03/12-24/03117 318 314
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 28/03/13 28/08/14-27/03/19 2.08 2.00
10,392,000 1,000,000 (1,292,000) - 10,100,000
11,592,000 1,000,000 (1,692,000 - 10,900,000

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at immediate date before the grant of
the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately
prior to the date of grant of the options.

Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme due to resignation of
employees.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed immediately before the
exercise date of the share options is the weighted average of the Stock
Exchange closing prices immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised over all of the exercise of options within the
disclosure line. The weighted average closing price of Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised by the
Director and other employees were HK$1.95 and HK$2.15 respectively.
No options granted under 2003 Share Option Scheme were cancelled
during the year.

There were no options granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under
2013 Share Option Scheme during the year.
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As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the shares or underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARNEEBRPHLTE
Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

BFENROBE SO REZRME

Percentage of
the Company’s

Share Through issued share
Directly Option controlled capital
beneficially granted corporation HARAFE
Name Notes owned EEZEN BBREFELAF Total ERITRA
=18 k3 BEEERES i IR RE BE By WEDL
Directors
Bx
Ms. Li Kei Ling (a) 48,000,000 - 294,072,000 342,072,000 42.66
FHIR L+
Mr. Hung Yung Lai (@) - - 294,072,000 294,072,000 36.67
RERIE A
Mr. Li Tung Ming (b) 10,612,000 - 56,000,000 66,612,000 8.31
FERAKE
Mr. Gao Yi (c) 4,200,000 800,000 - 5,000,000 0.62
BREE
Mr. Leung Hong Man (d) - - 65,000,000 65,000,000 8.11
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated
corporation:

Name of
associated Relationship with
Name of Director corporation the Company
E=ER B ERE ERA A R W BAR
Ms. Li Kei Ling Fortune United the Company’s
ZTHR L Group Limited holding company

Mr. Hung Yung Lai

ZAUNSIL: 2 N

Fortune United the Company’s

RERIE R4 Group Limited holding company
A RHIERA A

Notes:

(a) 294,072,000 shares of the Company are held by Fortune United Group Limited, a

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Keysmart Enterprises Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling, and Hunwick International Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai, are each beneficially interested in 50% of the
share capital of Fortune United Group Limited.

56,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Time Lead Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued share capital of
Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Li Tung Ming.

800,000 shares options were granted to Mr. Gao Yi under the Company’s option
scheme adopted on 21 June 2003 and Mr. Gao is deemed to be interested in the
shares which will be issued to him upon his exercise of option, representing
approximately 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital.

60,000,000 and 5,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Toyo International
Investment Limited and Union Link Industrial Ltd. respectively, both companies are
incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr. Leung Yiu Sing are each
beneficially interested in 50% of the share capital of Toyo International Investment
Limited and Union Link Industrial Ltd.

Subsequent to 31 December 2013, Mr. Gao Yi resigned as an Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect on 9
March 2014.

PAREOEB R ) KRR PR

Percentage of
the associated

Number of corporation’s
Ordinary issued share
shares capital
55 Capacity and LR EE
ZERSG nature of interest EETRAE
HE B RERME WEZL
2 Through a controlled 50
corporation
iR — Al AR
2 Through a controlled 50

corporation

BB — RS R E)

B

@ 294,072,000 RA R FIRMDBE—RR BB HB RS TRK IR
@) Fortune United Group Limited F7 #f % < Fortune United Group
Limited & f% 748 f 2= 2 ¥ 2 + & & ¥ & B Keysmart Enterprises
Limited 2 5 R& &8 42 5% 4 % & ¥ A &) Hunwick International Limited
EHE@EA50%Em

(b) 56,000,000 IR AR FIiR D A — R R B M B R BB s s

@) Time Lead Investments Limited F7#5 % ° Time Lead Investments

Limited 2 BB HITRABFRALEEREE ©

(© BEARDRZZZ=F A+ —BRAZERESE - SR
SE A T 800,000 B - MAELWRRER BITEZULIE

[l RERS 1S BT THR 18 2 B 0 #E

AR RREBITROE0.1% °

60,000,000 fi% %2 5,000,000 & A 2 RIA A 93 5l B — R A B ALK

YR RRREEBFREFRADRBETEEERAAMFE - R
BEREAEBRARARBAEZARARNZ ML HITRASH

REREENRBRELES BERES 0%

TE=F+ZA=t+—HZ%E SREEFEERAF
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Subsequent to 31 December 2013, Ms. Huang Dongmei has been
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 9
March 2014. As at 9 March 2014, Ms. Huang was interested in
1,664,000 shares which will be issued to her upon exercise of options
granted to her under 2003 Share Option Scheme and 2,000,000 shares
which will be issued to her upon exercise of options granted to her under
2013 Share Option Scheme, totally 3,664,000 shares representing
approximately 0.46% of the Company’s issued share capital.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive Officer had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share option scheme”, “Directors’
and Chief Executive Officer’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 30 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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As at 31 December 2013, the following interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:
Long positions: -
Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest
BENROEE SHOREZME
Percentage of
the Company’s
Through issued share
Directly controlled capital
Beneficially Family corporation HARAE
Name Notes owned interest EiRE Total BRTRAK
=y {iFsd BEEERESR REER NGIES2 =] mE WEIL
Fortune United Group (a) 294,072,000 - - 294,072,000 36.67
Limited
Keysmart Enterprises Limited (@) - - 294,072,000 294,072,000 36.67
Hunwick International Limited (@) - - 294,072,000 294,072,000 36.67
Mdm. lu Pun (o) - 294,072,000 - 294,072,000 36.67
o e
Time Lead Investments (@) 56,000,000 - - 56,000,000 6.98
Limited
Toyo International Investment (d) 60,000,000 - - 60,000,000 7.48
Limited
REBRREBR AT
Mdm. Lo Mei Sai (e) - 65,000,000 - 65,000,000 8.11
mEWLT
Mr. Leung Yiu Sing (d) & (q) - - 68,200,000 68,200,000 8.50
Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong () & (9) - 65,200,000 3,000,000 68,200,000 8.50

Sxut
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Notes:

The issued capital of Fortune United Group Limited is equally beneficially owned by
Keysmart Enterprises Limited and Hunwick International Limited which are in turn,
respectively, wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Executive
Directors of the Company.

Mdm. lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai.

The entire issued capital of Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially owned by Mr.
Li Tung Ming, an Executive Director of the Company.

The issued capital of Toyo International Investment Limited is equally beneficially
owned by Mr. Leung Hong Man, the Non-executive Director of the Company and his
father Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

Mdm. Lo Mei Sai is the wife of Mr. Leung Hong Man and is deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Hong Man.

Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong is the wife of Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

5,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Union Link Industrial Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and Mr. Leung Hong Man
are each beneficially interested in 50% of the issued share capital of Union Link
Industrial Limited. 3,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Dragon Asia Industrial
(Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and
Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong, his wife are each beneficially interested in 50% of the issued
share capital of Dragon Asia Industrial (Holdings) Limited. 200,000 shares of the
Company are held by Hong Kong Wealth Creation Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Yiu Sing is beneficially interested in 1/3 of the issued share
capital of Hong Kong Wealth Creation Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person, other
than the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive
Officer’s interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITORS
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014

Report of the Directors
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 133, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2014
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Year ended 31 December 2013 B E —Z —

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

— basic, for profit for the year

— diluted, for profit for the year

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed

in note 12 to the financial statements.
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2013
—E-=

RMB’000

AR®TR

914,973

(511,725)

403,248

17,197
(112,749)
(61,609)
(53,521)
(3,600)

188,966

(35,867)

153,099

153,099

RMBO0.1910
RMBO0.1908

2012
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBTFT

856,539

(532,144)

324,395

14,374
(104,711)
(53,070)
(32,522)
(3,825)

144,641

(30,135)

114,506

114,506

RMBO0.1432
RMBO0.1429
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Year ended 31 December 20183 BE—Z—=F+-_A=+—HILEFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEER 153,099 114,506
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified ~ AZHIESHESBERIBER K
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BEM 2K
Exchange differences PE X =% 2,240 324

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR REERBAHMEEKRSHATE

THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 2,240 324
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR REERBEBTEMWSZALE

THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 155,339 114,830
Attributable to: R EIEFELG ¢

Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZS PN 155,339 114,830
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31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Construction in progress
Intangible assets

Interests in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Income tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
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Notes

i =

14
15
16
17
18
28

19
20

21

22
23
23

24
25
26

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—®-=F -—T -F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%KTT
536,832 385,782
43,298 44,339
102,232 195,107
16,758 21,821
2,843 703
701,963 647,752
155,887 182,918
381,203 402,922
13,307 14,432
5,896 5,705
257,121 160,220
205,771 155,694
1,019,185 921,891
245,139 285,319
95,859 69,825
248,176 201,751
7,177 5,992
596,351 562,887
422,834 359,004
1,124,797 1,006,756

Company
AT

2013 2012
—®-=f —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTT
277,552 282,606
277,552 282,606
181 206
5,896 5,705
608 535
6,685 6,446
354 137
354 137
6,331 6,309
283,883 288,915



NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Government grants
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Issued capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

LI Kei Ling
ZH®
Director

EF
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Group

rEE
2013 2012

—g—= —F——

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fizx AR¥Tr ARBTET
27 3,884 2,094
28 29,176 22,550
33,060 24,644
1,091,737 982,112
29 84,973 84,838
31 963,399 861,866
12 43,365 35,408
1,091,737 982,112
1,091,737 982,112

HUNG Yung Lai
REELIE
Director

EF

Company
PN

2013 2012
—E2—-= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%TT
283,883 288,915
84,973 84,838
155,545 168,669
43,365 35,408
283,883 288,915
283,883 288,915
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Cconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEEER

Year ended 31 December 2013 B E—T—=F+—_A=+—BILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRFRA AEGER
Capital Statutory Exchange Proposed
Share  redemption Share surplus fluctuation final
Issued premium reserve option  Contributed reserve reserve Retained dividend Total
capital account  ARE@ reserve suplus  EERH  ELEE profits Bk Total equity

BEIRE  RiEE W ERERE  AARR Mg W REEN  RERS Bt ESRE
Notes ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD ~ RMBOOD ~ RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'OOD  RMBI00O
WiE ARETT ARETL ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR

(note 29) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 12)
GER) (Fikst)  OW&Es1)  (Biskst)  (WEES1)  (Mfskst) (R 12)

At 1 January 2012 R-E——%-f-H 84,707 69,183 2,715 4,256 100,175 118,946 (9,445) 504,214 44,127 918,878 918,878
Profi for the year KEFEF = = = = = = - 114506 - 114506 114506
Other comprehensive income A £ 2

for the year: g

Exchange differences EXEE - - - - - - 324 - - 324 324
Total comprehensive income A4 & 2 iz

for the year ekl - = = = = = 324 114,506 = 114,830 114,830
Exercise of share options 172 AR 30 131 989 - (187) - - - - - 933 933
Final 2011 dividend ER=T——F

dedlared R0} - - - - - - - -l @ @
Dividend on shares issued ~ —F——4

for employee share +-A=+-A%

options exercised after fifetEEmRIE

31 December 2011 FMEIRGNRE = - = = = = = (70) = (70) (70)
Equity-settled share option S\ RR#E S 4 #0Bs B

arrangements T 30 - - - 1,439 - - - - - 1,439 1,439
Interim 2012 dividend —T-CEhERE 12 - = - - - - - 0.771) - ©77) 9,771)
Proposed final 2012 BE-E-—%

dividend RERE 12 - - - - - - - (35,408) 35,408 - -
Transfer from retained profits £ R & 4 F|ep 2% - - - - - 14,04 - (14,041) - - -

At 31 December 2012 WZE-Z§
+-F=+-A 84,838 70,172 2,715 5,508 100,175 132,987 9,121) 559,430 35,408 982,112 982,112
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Year ended 31 December 20183 BE—Z—=F+-_A=+—HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARERARLER
Capital Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Share redemption Share surplus  fluctuation final
Issued premium reserve option  Contributed reserve reserve Retained dividend Total
capital account  EAEE reserve surplus  EERH  ERED profits Rk Total equity

ERARF  RbHEE fife  BRERR  S0&a% Mg @ REER  RERE EE v
Notes ~RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
WE AR®TR ARETR AR®Tn ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARET:R

(note 29) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 12)
(HiE29) (WaEs1)  (W&ES1)  (MRES1)  (W&EES1)  (Mf&ES1) (KiE12)

At 1 January 2013 R-E-=4—-F-A 84,838 70,172 2,715 5508 100175 132,987 ©121) 559430 35408 982112 982,112
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - - 153,009 - 153000 153,009
Other comprehensive REEHMRENE

income for the year:

Exchange differences ERES - - - - - - 2,240 - - 2,240 2,240
Total comprehensive AEELANREE

income for the year - - - - - - 2,240 153,099 - 155,339 155,339
Exercise of share options ~~ 17{ B k& 30 135 1,073 - (207) - - - - - 1,001 1,001
Final 2012 dividend ER-E-—F

declared RER S - - - - - - - - (35,408) (35,408) (35,408)
Dividend on shares issued ~ —%——%

for employee share +-A=1-H%

options exercised after I EEERE

31 December 2012 FETRHORE - - - - - - - (58) - (58) (58)
Equity-settled share DARRAES: {1 R e

option arrangements ZH 30 - - - 1,412 - - - - - 1,412 1,412
Interim 2013 dividend “E-CFhERE 12 - - - - - - - (12,661) - (12,661) (12,661)
Proposed final 2013 BE-F-=F

dividend KRS 12 - - - - - - - 43365 43365 - -
Transfer from retained profits &R & & e 8 - - - - - 17,367 - (17,367) - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=%

+-A=+-A 84,973 71,245 2,115 6,713 100,175* 150,354* (6,881) * 639,078 43365 1,091,737 1,091,737
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB963,399,000 * WERES £ ARKII3900T(=ZFT—=—: AR¥
(2012: RMB861,866,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 861,866,000 7T) I A 4r & BT IS ARR = E MRS58 -
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Year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=F+_A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Expense off intangible assets
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Recognition of land use rights
Gain on disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss
Equity-settled share option expense
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value
Impairment of property, plant
and equipment
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade and notes receivables
Decrease in prepayments
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and
other receivables
Increase in pledged bank deposits
(Decrease)/increase in trade and
notes payables
Increase in other payables and accruals
Increase in government grants
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities
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Notes

B &

2013
—E-=

RMB’000

AR®T

188,966

3,600
(9,123)

(220)

265
6,880
34,465
949
1,041

(96)

36
1,412

5,591
12,517
(38)

246,245

21,440
21,757
1,940

746
(14)

(40,180)
7,734
1,790

(30,196)

231,262

2012
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBTFT

144,641

3,825
(4,809)

(216)

118

28,402
1,423
1,041

(28)

(957)
1,439

3,568

(100)

178,347

(10,476)
40,167
1,043

(1,035)
(420)

16,107
2,569
594
(23,272)

203,624



CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Dividend income from equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress

Purchases of intangible assets

Purchases of equity investments at fair value

through profit or loss

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options

Proceeds from bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Release of bank deposits pledged

for bank loans

Increase in pledged bank deposits for

bank loans

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Short-term deposits
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Year ended 31 December 20183 BE—Z—=F+-_A=+—HILEFE

2013

—E-=
Notes RMB’000
B E AR®T

7,562

4 220

730

822

(88,681)

17 (2,766)
(953)

(83,066)

1,001
133,230
(80,747)
5 (3,600)
(48,127)

160,220

(257,107)

(95,130)

53,066

155,694
(2,989)

205,771

159,405
46,366

205,771

2012
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBTFT

3,260
216
491
127

(107,643)
(5,640)

(140)

(109,329)

933
235,579
(142,017)
(3,825)
(53,968)

88,294

(159,800)

(34,804)

59,491

97,805
(1,602)

155,694

103,718
51,976

155,694
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Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands on 20 September 2002 under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is
located at Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) underwent a reorganisation on 21 June 20083 to rationalise
the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), pursuant to which the
Company became the holding company of the Group (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 July 2008.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
development, manufacture and sale of non-patented
pharmaceutical medicines including intermediate pharmaceutical,
bulk medicines and finished drugs. In the opinion of the directors,
Fortune United Group Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss that have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2013. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of the subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described in the accounting policy
for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair
value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 10
IFRS 11
IFRS 12

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 Amendments

IFRS 13
IAS 1 Amendments

IAS 19 (Revised 2011)

IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 28 (Revised)

IAS 36 Amendments

IFRIC 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards —
Government Loans

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11
and IFRS 12 — Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee
Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures
Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets (early adopted)
Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine
Amendments to a number of IFRSs
issued in May 2012

The adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and Hedge Accounting and amendments
IAS 39 Amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS 39*

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12

(Revised) Amendments and IAS 27 (Revised) —
Investment Entities'
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Employee

Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

IAS 39 Amendments Amendments to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of

Hedge Accounting’
IFRIC 21 Levies'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle issued in December 20132
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle issued in December 20132

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
. No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 is the first part of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to
entirely replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial
assets into four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets
as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on
the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for
the classification and measurement of financial assets compared
with the requirements of IAS 39.
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In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in IFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of IAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS
39, while changes were made to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss using the
fair value option (“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in
profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect
of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts which have been designated
under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

In November 2013, the IASB added to IFRS 9 the requirements
related to hedge accounting and made some related changes to
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 which include the corresponding disclosures
about risk management activity for applying hedge accounting. The
amendments to IFRS 9 relax the requirements for assessing hedge
effectiveness which result in more risk management strategies
being eligible for hedge accounting. The amendments also allow
greater flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on using
purchased options and non-derivative financial instruments as
hedging instruments. In addition, the amendments to IFRS 9 allow
an entity to apply only the improved accounting for own credit risk-
related fair value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as
introduced in 2010 without applying the other IFRS 9 requirements
at the same time.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this
entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 on impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The previous mandatory
effective date of IFRS 9 was removed in December 2013 and a
mandatory effective date will be determined after the entire
replacement of IAS 39 is completed. However, the standard is
available for application now. The Group will quantify the effect in
conjunction with other phases, when the final standard including all
phases is issued.
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The amendments to IFRS 10 issued in October 2012 include a
definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity. Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments
were made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Revised). The amendments to
IFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The Group expects that these amendments will not have
any impact on the Group as the Company is not an investment
entity as defined in IFRS 10.

In 30 January 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral
Accounts to ease the adoption of IFRS for rate-regulated entities.
The standard allows an entity to continue applying most of its
existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral account balances
upon adoption of IFRS. This interim standard provides first-time
adopters of IFRS with relief from derecognising rate-regulated
assets and liabilities until a comprehensive project on accounting
for such assets and liabilities is completed by the IASB. IFRS 14 is
intended to encourage rate-regulated entities to adopt IFRS while
bridging the gap with entities that already apply IFRS, but do not
recognise regulatory deferral accounts. This would be achieved by
requiring separate presentation of the regulatory deferral account
balances (and movements in these balances) in the statement of
financial position and statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income.

The IAS 19 Amendments apply to contributions from employees or
third parties to defined benefit plans. The amendments simplify the
accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of
years of employee service, for example, employee contributions
that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the
amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years
of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such contributions as
a reduction of service cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2015.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of
the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2014.
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The IAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to the requirement
of discontinuing hedge accounting in situations where over-the-
counter derivatives designated in hedging relationships are directly
or indirectly, novated to a central counterparty as a consequence
of laws or regulations, or the introduction of laws or regulations. For
continuance of hedge accounting under this exception, all of the
following criteria must be met: (i) the novations must arise as a
consequence of laws or regulations, or the introduction of laws or
regulations; (i) the parties to the hedging instrument agree that one
or more clearing counterparties replace their original counterparty
to become the new counterparty to each of the parties; and (jii) the
novations do not result in changes to the terms of the original
derivative other than changes directly attributable to the change in
counterparty to achieve clearing. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2014.

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when
the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant
legislation, occurs. The interpretation also clarifies that a levy liability
is accrued progressively only if the activity that triggers payment
occurs over a period of time, in accordance with the relevant
legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum
threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be
recognised before the specified minimum threshold is reached. The
Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2014.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Cont’d)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will
be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Cont’d)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s interests in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES
These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group companies. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currency of the Company, Dawnrays International
Co., Ltd. (“Dawnrays International”), Dawnrays International Co.,
Ltd. (“Dawnrays International (HK)”) and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Dawnrays Pharma”) (collectively the “Overseas
Companies”), is the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these companies are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (RMB) at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of the Overseas Companies are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates
and sales taxes or duties. Revenue is recognised on the following
bases:

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China (the “Mainland China Subsidiaries”) are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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ACCOMMODATION BENEFITS

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the
Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, an appropriate capitalisation
rate shall be applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants (the Company’s directors, employees of the Group and
other eligible participants) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby eligible participants render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-
Merton valuation model, further details of which are given in note
30 to the financial statements. The cost of equity-settled
transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the participants as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the entity or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share
(further details are given in note 13).

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
as defined by IAS 39. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other income
and gains and negative net changes in fair value presented as
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” above.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for sale investment revaluation
reserve to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” above.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
where observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and notes payables,
other payables and loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

QOver the lease terms
20 to 25 years

51to 10 years

5 to 25 years

5 years

Leasehold land

Buildings

Machinery and other equipment
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

LEASES

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

LAND USE RIGHTS

Land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments under
operating leases, which are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit
level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products commencing from the
date when the products are put into commercial production.

Category Estimated useful life
il fhEt A E A EH
Software 10 years

LIS 104F

Research and development costs 10 years

BB 104

The estimated residual value is zero.
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INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and

condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on a weighted-average
basis

Finished goods and work  Cost of direct materials and labour
in progress and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on the normal
operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted or pledged as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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PROVISIONS (Cont’d)

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the
higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the general guidance for provisions above; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the guidance for revenue

recognition.

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

U

(i)

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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DIVIDENDS

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement which has the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2.4 to the financial statements. Initial
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgements that
technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a
product development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an established project management model.
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ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is made based on assessment of their
recoverability. The identification of impairment of receivables
requires management’s judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of the
receivables and impairment loss/reversal of impairment in the
period in which such an estimate has been changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste or
competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting date. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indications
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and has two reportable segments as
follows:

(@ Manufacture and sale of intermediates and bulk medicines (the
“intermediates and bulk medicines” segment)

(b)  Manufacture and sale of finished drugs (including antibiotics
finished drugs and non-antibiotics finished drugs) (the
“finished drugs” segment)
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Management monitors the operating results of these operating
segments for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income, finance costs, government grants, dividend
income, fair value gains/(losses) from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank loans, tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.

Intermediates

and bulk
medicines
Year ended BE-_2—=% P
31 December 2013 +=ZA=t+—BLtEFEE RIER %
RMB’000
ARET
Segment Revenue: PEWA
Sales to external customers HIMNEE 364,818
Intersegment sales DIEBEE 67,519
432,337
Segment Results DEEE (15,984)
Reconciliation: SR
Unallocated gains N Gy
Corporate and other EREMERNE
unallocated expenses Y
Finance costs HEER
Profit before tax B 75 A& A
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HE ENMBMA  MEER - BUFEE - BB
A RKEREESRTANRAEBERS(BE) -
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DREETERECHAEE  cEMRITER
RekReEEY  BREBERUARETIIRNRE
BRENEMADEETREEEE  TTARNZEER
ENEEREEEE -

DEAETEEFERITER  BNBIE  BER

HABREMRDEANEEERAE  HHRZE
BENEEREEERRE -

DEMENHEREEN2REEFEBERE=F
B AT AR TS B AR HETT o

Elimination of

intersegment

Finished sales
drugs K 85 Total
% SEEHEE mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T ARBTT
550,155 - 914,973
- (67,519) -
550,155 (67,519) 914,973
290,059 - 274,075
14,589
(96,098)
(3,600)
188,966



Year ended
31 December 2012

Segment Revenue:

Sales to external customers

Intersegment sales

Segment Results
Reconciliation:
Unallocated gains
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax

As at
31 December 2013

Segment Assets:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment Liabilities:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

PEWA
HINHE
DIBEHEE

TERE

HE

Ao Bl
EENEMRIE

H

+ 3
1]
=+ 1l
I
m

DBAE :
A -

EEMEMARD

BE
BEE
PEEE:

s

EREMARD

BE

BAR

Intermediates
and bulk
medicines
g

R R 4
RMB’000
ARETT

377,531
82,266

459,797

(2,053)
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Finished
drugs

5%
RMB’000
ARETT

479,008

479,008

221,946

Intermediates
and bulk
medicines
PR
A
RMB’000
AR¥F T

580,223

183,589

Elimination of
intersegment
sales

i
DIEMEE
RMB’000
ARBFTT

(82,266)

(82,266)

Finished
drugs

P8
RMB’000
AR®T T

480,709

108,444

Total

B
RMB’000
ARBTT

856,539

856,539

219,893
9,050

(80,477)
(3,825)

144,641

Total
He
RMB’000

ARBT R
1,060,932

660,216
1,721,148

292,033

337,378

629,411

91



31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

92

As at R-ZE—Z4F
31 December 2012 +=-—A=+—H
Segment Assets: PEEE:
Reconciliation: JHEK
Corporate and other PEREMARS A
unallocated assets BE
Total assets BEE
Segment Liabilities: SHEEE:
Reconciliation: FHE
Corporate and other EREMRIAER
unallocated liabilities =N
Total liabilities was
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
(@) Revenue from external customers
Mainland China AR B K RE

India ENE
Other countries EmBExR

The revenue information above is based on the locations of
the customers.

Non-current assets

The Group’s operations are substantially based in Mainland
China and over 95% of the non-current assets, exclude
deferred tax assets, of the Group are located in Mainland
China. Therefore, no further analysis of geographical
information is presented.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from continuing operations of approximately
RMB107,342,000 (2012: RMB75,174,000) was derived from sales
by the finished drugs segment to a single customer.

Intermediates
and bulk

medicines Finished
W drugs Total
YA X 2 e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEF T ARETTT AREFT
698,089 403,287 1,101,376
468,267
1,569,643
190,397 44,663 235,060
352,471
587,531

&S
@ REIBEFHEA

2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREEFIT
824,494 755,759
2,007 28,996
88,472 71,784
914,973 856,539

L ABRLERIEE P FAAEEE

b) FRBEE
AEEMNEETRRTHETEAE  ~A5E
HBEBRHIERBEE(TBEELEHEE
E)EPEPEAE  SIERBDEENME
BRE—FIAMLRZMR -

FEEFEER
FEICEFTB WA EF AR 107,342,0007T(=
T——4F: ARMT75,174,0007T) 5 B AR 255> $8 84
EHR—REF o



Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade

discounts.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as

follows:

Revenue
Sale of goods

Other income

Bank interest income

Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Foreign exchange differences

Government grants

Others

Gains
Gain on disposal of equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gains, net:
Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
within five years

A
HEEm

HlA
RITHBHA

FERBRARREIIERZ

PR B MBS WA
P ERE

BT R

Hitp

Wz

HEBBBRBRARAEINERZ

Bt B B W an

N ENE - R

BRBERARREINERLZ

B E

ARAFATREENR

B2 E

1

T
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g

WA(FREELER) BHEERNBREE - E5
FrNH)ERFER o

REBWA - EAARA R RS DT

Group

#EE
2013 2012
—E-= —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
914,973 856,539
9,123 4,809
220 216
2,159 610
3,926 5,785
1,673 1,969
17,101 13,389
96 28
- 957
96 985
17,197 14,374

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT
3,600 3,825
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The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEEMBRBEAIDEF &R,/ (G A) T3 &1E
1BETE -
Group
rE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR® TR ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold* EEGFEMRA 508,622 528,582
Depreciation e 14 34,465 28,402
Recognition of land use rights** b PR RERR 15 1,041 1,041
Research and development costs: i 7E R AR A
Amortisation of intangible assets** BB 17 722 1,078
Current year expenditure REFESH 33,839 25,743
34,561 26,821
Minimum lease payments under KERAT 2 xEHE -
operating leases:
Buildings EF 873 1,604
Auditors’ remuneration % ERET N & 1,200 1,200

Employee benefit expense (including EERMNA (BEESERES
directors’ and chief executive officer’s B (BaE7)) -
remuneration (note 7)):

Wages and salaries TENFE 78,342 67,739
Equity-settled share option expense LA RS S 1< B B AR A B S 1,412 1,439
Retirement benefits RREF 9 7,117 6,898
Accommodation benefits FEEF 9 3,175 3,026
Other benefits H i EH 12,413 11,461
102,459 90,563
Foreign exchange differences, net BE X =5 - FE (2,159) (610)
Impairment of property, plant and M - WE - RERE
equipment 12,517 =
Reversal of impairment of trade O EWE 5 IERE
receivables (38) (100)
Write-down of inventories to net FEMURZE ] #I5%E
realisable value 5,591 3,568
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AREEE (W) - F8
Equity investments at fair value BRBEZUAQABEIERZ
through profit or loss RRAEIL A 36 (957)
Bank interest income SRITFISUA (9,123) (4,809)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BENMKREEZER
plant and equipment HIE1E 265 118
Expense off intangible assets mEEEBR 6,880 -
Gain on disposal of equity investments  H&EREBZIA AL ETIEY
at fair value through profit or loss &5 & W m (96) (28)
The depreciation of RMB26,281,000 for the year is included in “Cost of * AEEHFEHFP ARKE26,281,000 BT A [EEF
inventories sold”. BRA] -
The recognition of land use rights for the year is included in “Administrative > FRM T HE AR AGRIBRRO[TTHRER] -

expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Other T FANEREERET AGEBERN [EMER] -
expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements
MIGH =R

31 December 2013 R —ZE—=F+_-A=+—H1

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S 7. EER#XRME

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the year, RIE LR RBEERRMEHIE 161 ST EFR
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the MEERBEMSOT -

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group

rEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETTT

Fees we 604 620
Other emoluments: H A Fr -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe R EKEYER 2,805 2,898
Equity-settled share option expense ARG S (T O BB IR R =2 112 194
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIHR 64 60
2,981 3,152
3,585 3,772
(a) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (a) BIFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during RNEEFHIEPITEFNRST

the year were as follows:

2013 2012
=3—= —F—_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Mr. Pan Xue Tian EERSELE 119 122
Mr. Choi Tat Ying, Jacky BERSEYE 119 122
Mr. Lo Tung Sing, Tony BRBLEE 119 122

357 366
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent NEEL EREN BT ERITEENE MBS
non-executive directors during the year (2012: Nil). (—E——%&F: &\ ).
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(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND A NON-EXECUTIVE (b) BITEER—BIFHTES
DIRECTOR
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
in kind expense contributions Total
Fees ¥& 2l UREIXAW &{k€ remuneration

e REWEN BRERX AR Lkt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTR ARETRT AR®TR ARETR

2013 —E-=F
Executive directors: WITESE:
Ms. Li Kei Ling ZHBRTT 38 873 - 16 927
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERME LA 38 533 - 16 587
Mr. Li Tung Ming ZRALE 38 533 - 16 587
Mr. Gao Vi (also the SREE
Chief Executive Officer) () 38 866 112 16 1,032
152 2,805 112 64 3,133
Non-executive director: FRTEE
Mr. Leung Hong Man PERLA 95 - - - 95
247 2,805 112 64 3,228
2012 —T——fF
Executive directors: WITES
Ms. Li Kei Ling ZHB LT+ 39 918 - 15 972
Mr. Hung Yung Lai FRAEMB LA 39 546 - 15 600
Mr. Li Tung Ming FRALE 39 546 - 15 600
Mr. Gao Vi (also the BRLAE
Chief Executive Officer) (GREEH) 39 888 194 15 1,136
156 2,898 194 60 3,308
Non-executive director: FMITES :
Mr. Leung Hong Man RERREE 98 - - - 98
254 2,898 194 60 3,406
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or EREEEEHER RS HETAME N
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B o
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The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2012: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one
(2012: one) non-director, highest paid employee for the year is as
follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R MEYET

LA Pl 4 AT o) 8 s e e S

Equity-settled share option expense

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIE R

The number of non-director, highest paid employee whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %% 1,000,0007T

During the year, no share option was granted to the non-director,
highest paid employee in respect of his services to the Group.

In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), the Company, Dawnrays
International Company Limited and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong)
Limited have participated in the MPF Scheme, a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee, to
provide retirement benefits to their respective Hong Kong
employees. Contributions to the MPF Scheme are made in
accordance with the statutory limits prescribed by the MPF
Ordinance.

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

FARURHEEREOML(ZT——4F : @fI)
B HMEFBERN EXMWET - 8 T~ (=
T——F: —1)FEFRSFHEEBNFANHM
LI

Group

rEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
566 500
56 97
17 15
639 612

e BN T NIARNEEERSESFMET
BAZLT

Number of employee

BEE A"
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
1 1

FRN - ZFEEREEHEELEALSANEER
MR T AR -

ERCGRHIME TR S A BHEGD (@ 5R01)) 8
T ARAE] - RIEBRERNERA R RRGA %
(FE)BRAREMA—ERE S (BBILE
AAERZERHNE) REBEBREMAENK
@A o MR A S At BIF R R IRIR R TR S (R
FRETAREV R ERBERE
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As stipulated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) state
regulations, the Mainland China Subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme. All employees are entitled to an
annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the average basic
salary amount of the geographical area of their last employment at
their retirement date. The Mainland China Subsidiaries are required
to make contributions to the local social security bureau at 20% to
22% (2012: 20% to 22%) of the previous year’s average basic
salary amount of the geographical area where the employees are
employed by the Mainland China Subsidiaries.

The Group has no further obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the annual contributions as set out above.

According to relevant rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Mainland China Subsidiaries and their employees are each required
to make contributions to an accommodation fund at 8% to 10%
(2012: 8% to 10%) of the salaries and wages of the employees
which is administered by the Public Accumulation Funds
Administration Centre. There is no further obligation on the part of
the Group except for such contributions to the accommodation
fund.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no significant obligation
apart from the contributions as stated above.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 are:

BRBIBREREATE  FRAERBARESEE
ZREETE - FTBEENEEBRBHERZERES
méx%mmiﬁ%$%@m5$&Mﬁxm¢
BRKRE - FREAKEKBARARE ML SRER
R HIREE ZEN P B ARENEB A RIHE X
FNTPHERFEM20%E2% (T — 4 :
20% B 22%) 5t H o

B Bt ey FEHERIN  NEBW ARG E AR
REH o

RETENBBRAIER - PRIAENRBRAK
BEREBESEARRENHFERTENBNE10%
(ZE—ZF 8% E10%)A—HARFELEESP
LDEERNEFESHNR - RZERABEIFEESHN
I  REELEEMEE -

R-F—=F+-_A=1+—8  BRLa#ZI =«

SEYEHEMBEAEE -

HE—_Z—=FRk-_FT——F+-_A=+—H1t
FEMSHIENEZAKITLOT

Group
rE
2013 2012
—_ZE—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFTT
Current income tax = HAT g
Current income tax charge EHIFT SR 31,307 22 563
Adjustments in respect of current EABTFEEHEHAR
income tax in previous years 74 219
Deferred income tax (note 28) EREF A (M7 28) 4,486 7,353
Total tax charge for the year AREEHBEL HE5E 35,867 30,135



Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999 Revision)
of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an undertaking
from the Governor-in-Council that no law which is enacted in the
Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits, income,
gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its operations.
The undertaking for the Company is for a period of 20 years from 8
October 2002. Accordingly, the Company is not subject to tax.

The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) is
not subject to income tax, as this subsidiary does not have a place
of business (other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the BVI.

The Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to a statutory corporate
income tax rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) under the income tax rules
and regulations of Hong Kong. No provision for Hong Kong profits
tax has been made as the Group had no assessable profits arising
in its respective Hong Kong subsidiaries during the year (2012: Nil).

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law effective from 1
January 2008, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are all subject to
income tax at the rate of 25% on their respective taxable income.

On 21 October 2008, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”) was qualified as a High-New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) of Jiangsu Province. As a result,
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical had been entitled to a
concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for three years
commencing 1 January 2008. During the year ended 31 December
2011, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical renewed the qualification
of the HNTE of Jiangsu Province. As a result, Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical was entitled to a concessionary rate of income tax
at 15% for three years commencing 1 January 2011.

All other subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject to the
corporate income tax rate of 25% in 2013.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the country or jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the

applicable rate to the effective tax rate, are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax

At the PRC’s statutory income tax rate
of 25% (2012: 25%)

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax
concession or lower tax rate enacted
by local authority

Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries

Adjustments in respect of current income
tax of previous years

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax credit for qualified research and
development expense

Tax losses not recognised

Tax losses from previous periods utilised

At the effective income tax rate of 18.98%
(2012: 20.83%)

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the HEz—_Z—
year ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss of RMB3,265,000
(2012: a loss of RMB2,306,000), excluding investment income from
subsidiaries, which has been dealt with in the financial statements

of the Company (note 31(b)).
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Group
rEH

EBRME 2 HRNAT ¢
2013
—_E—=
RMB’000
AR®T R
BRETIS AT & 50 R A 188,966
LR EEEFTSBIHE 25%
ZE——F :25%) 47,241
AIEMBERR AN EMKAETTT
RIERER BB E
(19,472)
AEBFRWBEBAR AL REFBEZ
EHMTE 7,816
ERARATFEEHMEH AR
74
SGIEitkd =53 81
RE MR EHEOHEER S
FriSii (1,893)
RERIIEEE 2,699
IR LARTF E A A HIBE 1R (679)
RERFTSHIE18.98%
ZE— 4 :20.83%) 35,867

ZEETE

i AR BR B A e A 30 AR R R R EOR BB A9 B B
EE%.%/T/%TEE/X;ETRT n"— Ziﬂléiﬁgﬁi
NERHERAE 2RI B - ARERM KA

2012
—E——4F
RMB’000
ARET T

144,641

36,160

(15,576)

6,318

219
397

(1,584)

4,589
(388)

30,135

—E+ A=+ RALEAREEHAA
%ﬁAﬁm%mmﬂ$ﬁAEE$“ﬂ%Wﬁ%
o BR /Y g5 18 A R # 3,265,000 7T (=
18 AR % 2,306,000 7T )
BARMIEERA (MFE31())

——F:
QXQW
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Company
RATE]
2013 2012
—g—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETIT
Interim — HK$0.02 (2012: HK$0.015) FHIRE - EAAREK0.027T
per ordinary share —T—_F : #¥0.0157T) 12,661 9,771
Proposed final — HK$0.068 RORARHRE - B BB 0.0687T
(2012: HK$0.055) per ordinary share (ZZ——%F : B%0.0557T) 43,365 35,408
56,026 45179

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 801,489,129
(2012: 799,609,530) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

BRIRENORHREFHARARRRBEBEAXN

SREABFRES AR LT ERESFE AEML
AEERHNRFADBITERBA D 2 INEFH
% 84801,489,129/% ( —Z— —4F : 799,609,530 %)

e
ETE o

R EEERERBAN N EBRERN 2 ¥
BB EERETESRERABNNEAD ET
BB - I LA RERTT e R R R E R A
EERMRRA S EEETHE BB Z E T
B8
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Notes to Financial Statements
R 35 8 | P &E

31 December 2013 R—Z—=F+_-A=+—8

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. BRARIEERERFEEABLERERN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (#&)
(Cont’d)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based TIRAEFEGRERZT REEEZGRAR
on: BB
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Earnings &7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders £} Bl & @R 25158 A FE(L 5 F
of the parent 153,099 114,506
Number of shares
RO E
2013 2012
=3—= —E—_F
Thousands Thousands
Fiz Tz
Shares & 12
Weighted average number of ordinary FTEERERERFAEAEA
shares in issue during the year used in BETE @A I T #
the basic earnings per share calculation 801,489 799,610
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEESE — T ERAREL
number of ordinary shares:
Share options BB 864 1,489
Weighted average number of ordinary TECER 2EH AL 2T
shares adjusted for the effect of dilution T AAR AR 2R 802,353 801,099
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Group
xEE
Machinery
Leasehold and other Office Motor
land Buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BBER
HELH BF HitRE BAZERME RE k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETRT ARETR

Cost: AN
As at 1 January 2012 R-E——F—HF—H - 141,208 291,636 9,056 12,269 454,169
Additions NE 25,486 4,099 3,937 1,091 485 35,098
Transferred from construction FERTREE(NE16)
in progress (note 16) - 18,865 82,788 61 - 101,714
Disposals HE = = (2,343) (805) (554) (3,702)
Exchange realignment 0 5 % (285) (46) - (13) - (344)
As at 31 December 2012 and R-E-—F
1 January 2013 +ZA=+-HR
“%-=£-A-H 25,201 164,126 376,018 9,390 12,200 586,935
Additions NE - 413 531 387 1,032 2,363
Transferred from construction FETRER
in progress (note 16) (KizE16) = 73,107 138,607 1,374 932 214,020
Transferred to construction EAEETR
in progress (note 16) (Hi3E16) - (2,653) (33,026) (83) = (35,762)
Disposals HE - (55) (1,838) (205) (899) (2,997)
Exchange realignment R (695) (112) - (34) = (841)
As at 31 December 2013 N-B-=F
+=A=+-H 24,506 234,826 480,292 10,829 13,265 763,718
Accumulated depreciation E2HITERAE:
and impairment:
As at 1 January 2012 R-E——F—F—H - 40,410 120,474 6,303 8,659 175,846
Depreciation provided for the year ~ ERITERE A 7 6,507 20,114 728 1,046 28,402
Disposals HE - - (1,833) (761) (499) (3,093)
Exchange realignment R = (1) - (1) = ©)
As at 31 December 2012 and R-B——F
1 January 2013 +ZB=+-HK
“Z-=%-f-H 7 46,916 138,755 6,269 9,206 201,153
Depreciation provided for the year R ERE 4 29 7,506 25,361 645 924 34,465
Impairment for the year FARE - - 12,517 - = 12,517
Transferred to construction EAEETR(E16)
in progress (note 16) - (1,174) (17,989 (72) - (19,239
Disposals e - (1) (1,438) (182) (361) (2,002)
Exchange realignment R = ) - 9) - 12)
As at 31 December 2013 N-B-=F
+=A=+-H 36 53,224 157,206 6,651 9,769 226,886
Net book value: BREFE
As at 31 December 2013 N-B-=F
+=A=+-H 24,470 181,602 323,086 4,178 3,496 536,832
As at 31 December 2012 R-B-—&
+=A=+-H 25,194 117,210 237,263 3,121 2,994 385,782
At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s leasehold land and R-—T—=F+—-_A=+—01 AEEEFEEH
building in Hong Kong with a net carrying amount of approximately E+i REFEREEFELNARK 28,213,000t (=
RMB28,213,000 (2012: RMB29,207,000) were mortgaged to T——F : AR¥29207,0007T) BIKIPIER—F
secure a bank loan (note 26). BITE R (HEE26) °
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The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments RNEE 2+t fFRERRKEERNEN 2 T

under operating leases and their carrying amounts are analysed as EXRHEEREREITEOT
follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BERAEE 44,339 45,380
Recognised during the year FRER (1,041) (1,041)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HBEKEE 43,298 44,339

AEERE 2 LB AL R BARE W%+ 5
MAFH -

The land use rights of the Group are situated in Mainland China are
held under a medium term lease.

104

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTFT
As at 1 January R—HA—H 195,107 228,074
Additions NE 104,618 68,747
Transferred from property, plant and YZ - R MR EE A (i 14)
equipment (note 14) 16,527 -
Transferred to property, plant and Y - BB RS (FFE14)
equipment (note 14) (214,020) (101,714)
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 102,232 195,107



Cost:

As at 1 January
Additions

Transferred to expense

As at 31 December

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:

As at 1 January

Amortisation provided
for the year

As at 31 December

Net book value:
As at 31 December

As at 1 January

BA
W=A—H
E
HRER

Mt=A=t-H
R BHRAE
W=A—-H
FREH
R+=A=+-H

REEE
R+=-A=+-8

®=A—-R

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

2013
—B-Z%
Deferred
development
costs Software Others
BERBAE B Hit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR¥TRT AR®TR
35,720 2,287 588
2,766 - -
(6,880) - -
31,606 2,287 588
15,012 1,174 588
722 227 -
15,734 1,401 588
15,872 886 -
20,708 1,113 -

FEEMARL - AR
& W Bt 8 2 B 5R0R

The amounts due from subsidiaries of RMB203,931,000 (2012:
RMB206,894,000) are non-interest-bearing which, although
technically repayable under the original terms of the transactions
giving rise thereto, have been deferred for a longer term and are

therefore classified as non-current.

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

Group

K%M
Deferred
development
Total costs
aE ETREMAE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR
38,595 30,096
2,766 5,624
(6,380) -
34,481 35,720
16,774 13,934
949 1,078
17,723 15,012
16,758 20,708
21,821 16,162

2012
Software Others Total
it it B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR
2,271 588 32,955
16 - 5,640
2,287 588 38,595
947 470 15,351
2271 118 1,423
1,174 588 16,774
1,113 - 21,821
1,324 118 17,604
Company
N
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT T
73,621 75,712
203,931 206,894
277,552 282,606

JE W FfT B A 7] IE A R 203,931,000 ( = &
—— 4 AR#206,894,000 7T ) A EHH B H 4
B AR EME  ZSEBAREEIIRE
BEEELEERE  AEHEAER

RENESfE IR -
BhihtR -
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The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries included in the
investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value

operations of issued share/

Name SR T paid-up capital

YNGR REHEME BRT/EHRRAE

Directly held

BEEHFE

Dawnrays International British Virgin Islands US$100
Company Limited REHERRRES 10037

RinBR AR AT

Indirectly held

B#EFE

Dawnrays International Hong Kong HK$500,000
Company Limited BE 500,000/ 7T

RInER RGO BRAE]

Suzhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$45,000,000
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.? alBipNES 45,000,000 7T

BN ERR AT

Su Zhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$6,000,000
Pharmaceutical Science and A Bl A 6,000,0003 7T
Technology Co., Ltd.#

BMNRIn S R R AR A A

Dawnrays Pharma Hong Kong HK$500,000
(Hong Kong) Limited i 500,000/8 7T

Rink % (B8)BRAT

Guangdong Dawnrays Mainland China RMB3,000,000
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* BN AR 3,000,0007T

BERRImEXFRAA"

Dawnrays (Nantong) Mainland China US$10,000,000
Pharmaceutical Science and ~ # B AfzE 10,000,000 37T
Technology Co., Ltd.*

i (F93@) BERHR AR AR

i These subsidiaries were registered under PRC law as foreign-owned

enterprises.

i EAMBAR KB ARENB ARG BE
& NEt B RBEEERH -

HEBATRENT -

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
NN
BETD L

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

FTEXK

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding and
sale of pharmaceutical
products

REERMHEBEER

Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical
products
FENHEBREE D

Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical
intermediates
BLERHE R EDRHEEE

Sale of pharmaceutical
products
HE B EEM

Sale of pharmaceutical
products
HEBEEER

Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical
intermediates
SLERHERBEDPHEE

¢ ZEMBARRPBEERTMRINGRERE -



At cost or net realisable value:
Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

VAR AN 2% R B 3FEFHE -
JRF1#
&M
LR am

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of inventories
carried at fair value less costs to sell was RMB35,772,000 (2012:

RMB21,686,000).

Trade receivables
Impairment

Notes receivable

e E 550
(B

e W RIE SR

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally three months for major
customers. Each customer has a credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to manage credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade and notes receivables

are non-interest-bearing.

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

Group
AEE

2013
—g-=
RMB’000
AR®F T

30,945
76,032
48,910

155,887

2012
—E-—F
RMB’000
ARETIT

52,865
50,235
79,818

182,918

R-ZE—=F+_A=+—8 " UARERESH
ERANTEREEAARKES5,772,000L (=%

—— 4 AR#¥21,686,0007T) °

Group
£33

2013
—g-=
RMB’000
ARETF R

135,354
(879)

134,475
246,728

381,203

2012
—E-—F
RMB’000
ARETIT

171,664
917)

170,747
232,175

402,922

BRIEF —REEBFRIN AREEXEREE

ANEFFRS  MEBRFPEEHR—KRA=MEA -
BURFPHURBEERE - ARBEREEREKRE
BRYHIR  TREEEEERPITEEERR -
SREEEE & E i BER R o BRI LA
RBRAREENEEEZFIESRARENRES -
AtYESEETOEERR - BKE S REER

BANFRE
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An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, net of provisions, is as follows:

Trade receivables FEWE 5 5IR
Outstanding balances with ages: RIREREI DAY M R EREE -
Within 90 days 0 HA
Between 91 and 180 days 91 £ 180 H
Between 181 and 270 days 181 £270H
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360 H
Over one year —&FpAF

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

At 1 January Rn—A—A8
Impairment losses reversed B EVRERE
At 31 December W+=-—HA=+—H

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is provided
for individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
carrying amount before provision of RMB879,000 (2012:
RMB917,000). The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers with financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

REERER - RBESHRNELRES

MW

Group
EE
2013
—E-—=
RMB’000
ARBT T

102,845
29,404
2,146

80

134,475

e E SRR REREZES T

Group
rEE
2013
—E-—=
RMB’000
AR®BT T

917
(38)

879

HRIBREREE

2012
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBTFT

164,646
3,056
3,037

8

170,747

2012

—E——4F

RMB’000

ARETT

1,017
(100)

917

bt i M5 5 R T ) Ok (4 s T el B 4 T RO BR T
BMEARBE000T(ZZE—Z_F: AR¥

917,000 7T) B E BRI E B EEKE 5

SOBEHR - &

FEBICRERKE SRS R AMBRE 2
BEFAH - NEBELEAZ S EHRTITH EAER

a2k BREREL M (5 B ISR 5 36 ©



The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered
to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired R HA N N R R (B
Less than three months past due B H > 318 A
Over three months past due BAR3ME A LA £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE NOT DERECOGNISED
IN THEIR ENTIRETY

At 31 December 2013, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Notes”)
with a carrying amount of RMB85,180,000 to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to such Endorsed Notes, and accordingly, it continued
to recognise the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Notes and
the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
Endorsement, the Group does not retain any rights on the use of
the Endorsed Notes, including sale, transfer or pledge of the
Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. The aggregate carrying
amount of the trade payables and other payables settled by the
Endorsed Notes during the year to which the suppliers have
recourse was RMB70,874,000 and RMB14,306,000 as at 31
December 2013, respectively.

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

RRA R EREYE ZFARE DT

Group

#EE
2013 2012
—E—-= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
102,845 164,646
29,404 3,056
2,226 3,045
134,475 170,747

oK 780 5 e b 8 Rk (B Y B W SRR D B K 80 HA O R
BHEBESNZREPAR -

BEEYERENEYAENES R ERKE S
FRIFEECENBY TP AR - ERAELSR
AEBEERA/BARZSERELRERE B
REEEGXRIELRNERNEE - A BBRTIKR
BRI 2HNE - REEIWERZFERT R TR
EH S REVE A E & InoafE it o

AERRILBRZMBEE

RZFE—=F+=A=+—H8  RPBENRITER
AEBEBESRTHEARS5,180,000 7T 2 &K
ER(TBEER]) TEETHER  UINHEX
ZEREBIENBESR(EED - EFRE K
SEEE FNRBERKER  ETREREEE
ZRZENER Bt AEEFEERSERE
ZEREEABERENIEEENESR - BEE - &K
SEWRRBEAEAESRBR 2 EMEN - 825
HE EEERSERRTEMEME=F - F
N BREEERIN2HEREAREZENE
FHRREMENFERE—=F+=A=+—
Az @EEED R AARKT70,874,000F AR
# 14,306,000 7T °
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FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE DERECOGNISED IN
THEIR ENTIRETY

At 31 December 2013, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised
Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate
of RMB20,035,000. The Derecognised Notes have a maturity of
one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of
the Derecognised Notes have a right of recourse against the Group
if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Notes.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the
Derecognised Notes and the associated trade payables. The
maximum exposures to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Notes are equal to their
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes are
not significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain or loss on
the date of transfer of the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses
were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both during the
year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.

MR ULBIACUBEE

RZFE—=F+ZA=+—H ' RPBEMNRITER
AEEBEEETZRUER(RIEEREZED T
HETHER UIHEXZEHRERNENES
o BREEA T AR 20,035,000 ° & IEHER
ZENREBRZIBHEANTR—ENEA - BiE

TR ERRBAE - WIRITELD

HIJZK,U:EEWL AT

BREARHAKEARERR(BEERES
1) - EFRR > ARECDEE FERERIER

ERAWAERRRER - Bt

REBEERIE

EREBE 2 EHEMEALBEENE SR - K8
AEERRUIEARBIREREEMH Z2BER
RREBIA KB B & IR RE 2 AR &R
HREEMER - EFR5  AEERKLEEIARE

ZFBEEERMHZANETK -

RER  AEBREERZ L ERAREE AW EER
EEE - RFARBERTF FEEEEFLE

HREE - REFHIELEE -

Group Company
rEER PN

2013 2012 2013 2012
= —F-——F =®%= —FF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR%®TR ARETT
Prepayments TER 7,033 8,973 181 206
Deposits and other receivables & M E W FIE 6,274 5,459 - =
13,307 14,432 181 206

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

b EERE BRI EREE o
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Group Company
rEH RAF]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F —E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT AR®¥TR ARETET

Listed equity investments, TR A

at market value: EmE :

Hong Kong & 5,896 5,705 5,896 5,705
The above equity investments at 31 December 2013 and 2012 RZBE—=FR_FT——F+_A=+—H " Ll
were classified as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition, [REREDFEAEUR S BERMBENIRE @ EY)
designated by the Group as equity investments at fair value through MR AREEET ABBERUARLETE
profit or loss. BIRRAEIR & -

Group Company
AEH ARATH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——F —E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTRT ARETT AR¥ETRT ARETET
Cash and bank balances RE NIBITETF 262,043 263,938 608 535
Short-term deposits RHITFER 200,849 51,976 - =
462,892 315,914 608 535
Less: Bank deposit pledged for B BRITERmME
bank loans (note 26) IR 2 $R1T
HER (Mi7E26) (257,107) (159,800) - -
Bank deposit pledged for REAZEmME
letters of credit 2 R1T
TR (14) (420) - -
(257,121) (160,220) - =
Cash and cash equivalents He RIESEEY 205,771 155,694 608 535
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As at 31 December 2013, the cash and bank balances and short-
term deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB314,069,000 (2012: RMB210,213,000) in Mainland China.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks (including the pledged bank deposits) earns interest
at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

An aged analysis of the trade payables and notes payable as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

Outstanding balances with ages:

Within 90 days 90HRN
Between 91 and 180 days 91 &180H
Between 181 and 270 days 181 £270H
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360 H
Over one year —F L

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the trade and
notes payables approximate to their fair values. The aggregate
carrying amount of the trade payables settled by the Endorsed
Notes during the year to which the suppliers have recourse was
RMB70,874,000 as at 31 December 2013 (note 20).

REREC B0 B i RERER

R-E—=F+_A=+—8  ANEBRFEHAE
EREABARBNE S RRTEFEEHERE
BEARM®S314069000L( Z T —=F : AR
210,213,0007T) - ARSI NI BERABRAEM
B SR - ARIR AR B K B SINGE B IS R I A
EEAMIETIRER - ANEBBESBETETIN
EEBHIBTHEARBEBRAHME

RITFR(BRESERRITFR) O SIRIRE H
FREF R - BHERERBARAF—RE=
BARE  BEREENIREFZRKME - LIAERE
B 52 HATE BT SRR R BRER A 2. o SRITAEBRE AL
HRBETRER - FERFNHRITH - RENRE
SEVMNEREERIEARE -

RO 2 R A 5 B B AR SE B R AT
o :

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
155,385 246,730
87,380 37,213
1,425 801
132 45
817 530
245,139 285,319

B SHBTITF B R —MBIENT BRES
Bt ENESREERFEZRABEHEEARER
Ao BREEEBRINHEEREEREZEMNE
GRZEFERER-_SE—=F+-_A=1+—84A
AER#70,874,000 7T (FisE20) °
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Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-= —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTT ARBTT
Advances from customers TEULARE X 4,642 6,853
Accruals TEIRE A 17,272 9,565
Taxes other than corporate Br{>ZPTE RN
income tax B IE 4,903 4,797
Payable for purchases of FTIG I EE BT
machinery and construction BB 3R
of buildings 51,230 32,930
Other payables E AR ER 17,812 15,690
95,859 69,825

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
settlement term of six months. The carrying amounts of the other
payables and accruals approximate to their fair values. The
aggregate carrying amount of the other payables settled by the
Endorsed Notes during the year to which the suppliers have
recourse was RMB14,306,000 as at 31 December 2013 (note 20).

H AN IR E R 187 E A

Company
PN

2013 2012
—E-= —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTET
349 136
5 1
354 137

BEH - Bt

BNZEERERAZEAESEEQAAERS - BB
EEERINEEEARRREZEMERNTZ
F+-_A=+—HAARK

14,306,000 7T (FisE20) -

BEEEEN T =
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GROUP

Current
Bank loan — secured
Bank loan — secured

Bank loan — secured

Current

Bank loan — secured
Bank loan — secured
Bank loan — secured
Bank loan — secured
Bank loan — secured

=
EHEFRRITER
EHEFRRITER

SHEIRRITER

=

EHEFHRITER
EHEFHRITER
EHEFHRITER
EHEFHRITER
EHEFHRITER

Effective
interest rate (%)

BRI (%)

HIBOR*+1.50%
HIBOR*+1.50%
HIBOR*+1.00%

to £1.25%

Effective
interest rate (%)
B =X (%)

HIBOR*+1.50%
HIBOR*+1.50%
HIBOR*+1.50%
HIBOR*+2.00%
HIBOR*+2.00%

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had aggregate bank facilities
of approximately RMB913,073,000 (as at 31 December 2012:
RMB1,074,813,000), of which, bank facilities of HK$153,850,000
were secured by corporate guarantee of the Company or its

subsidiaries.

*

Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate

(@) The bank loan is secured by the mortgage of the Group’s leasehold land and

building in Hong Kong with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB28,213,000 (2012: RMB29,207,000) (note 14).

(b) The bank loans are secured by the pledge of certain of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits amounting to RMB33,200,000 (2012: Intra-group notes
receivable amounting to RMB33,500,000 and bank deposits amounting to

RMB300,000) (note 23).

(c) The bank loans are secured by the pledge of certain of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits amounting to RMB223,907,000 (2012: RMB159,500,000) (note

23).
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REME
2013
Maturity Original Equivalent
= R BER
HK$°000 RMB’000
BYTT AR¥T R
2014 13,643@ 10,668
2014 41,000® 32,059
2014 262,750¢ 205,449
317,393 248,176
2012
—E——F
Maturity Original Equivalent
2PN R GEESHIN
HK$ 000 RMB’000
BETT ARBETIT
2013 15,144@ 12,178
2013 41,0000 32,969
2013 108,000©@ 86,846
2013 78,7500 63,325
2013 8,000 6,433
250,894 201,751

RZF—=F+=A=+—H ' xEBHERTEE
BB ARBEI13,073,000 (R - TE——F+=
A=+—8: AR#1,074,813,0007T) © EF 48
#% 153,850,000 LRI TIE EREE U AR AT B A
AER AR -

BRRITRERFS

@ ZERITERBAEEAREFELN AR 28,213,000 T
WEBHE LM REFERER (ZT—=F: AR%
29,207,000 7T) (MizE14) ©

(0) ZERTERHAEBCEBFRTEREARKE
33,200,000 (=T —=F : HEE A AIMEKRZEIEA
AR 33,500,000 7T & R 1777 57 A R # 300,000 7T) (Fff
7 23) EIPHELR -

© ZERTERBAEBCEBRTEREARE
228,907,000 7T (= F—=4F : AR 159,500,0007T) (P
H23) LR o
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Cont’d) 26. sTESRITER(E)
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Analysed into: DE
Bank loans repayable: IRITERAEIRER
Within one year or on demand DR —F S IRE K 248,176 201,751
27. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 27. BUF R
Group
KEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEFIT
At 1 January n—H—H 2,094 1,500
Received during the year FRESH BT X 5,716 6,470
Released to the statement of profit or loss st AIBzE%* (3,926) (5,785)
Released to property, plant and equipment =+ A¥% - BE K& 54 - 91)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 3,884 2,094
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 « —Z=—=443 115
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The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows:

FRREHBREERBBEZESHMNT

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS EEHIBEEE
Group TEE Provision
s
RMB’000
AREEFIT
At 1 January 2012 RZE—=—F—H—H 1,738
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement FARGREERRER 2
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) EIEFETE (M 5E10) (1,035)
Deferred tax assets at 31 December 2012 n= —F+-_A=t+—HBE=ZZT—=F
and 1 January 2013 —ﬂ A2 iRER A& EFE 703
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement FRRGEERHZRERZ
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) EXEFIR (BHEE10) 2,140
Deferred tax assets at 31 December 2013 R-E—=FF+_A=1+—HZBEEHBEEE 2,843

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB16,429,000 (2012: RMB11,059,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits for which no
deferred tax assets have been recognised, as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
uncertain that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

ANER B AR B K BE SR 1S TR IE E5 18 A R % 16,429,000
TT(ZF——F: AR¥11,059,0007t) * 7] A{E
HHEEN —E R F AR AR RERBEF - B2
EEEAEMNELEHIEEEHARER - BELIRR
ELXEBEEE —BEBOMNBAR  THREESE
BRERTRF AT AR KEZ SRR -
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES EEFHIEEE
Group r&EH Withholding tax
FEHIBE
RMB’000
AREFTT
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE——F—H—H 16,232
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement FARGEBRRRNKRZ
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) EREFIE (BHEE10) 6,318
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 RZE——FF+_A=1+—HRZZ—=F
—HA—H 22,550
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement FRREGEERRNGR ZEERIE
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) (FFEE10) 7,816
Transferred to current tax payable R EBMEHRER (1,190)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H 29,176
SHARES R
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Authorised: VERE
10,000,000,000 (2012: 10,000,000,000) BREESE 0.1 TTHE B
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 10,000,000,000 f% (=& ——4F :
10,000,000,000 fi%) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
801,884,000 (2012: 800,192,000) BREEAE 0.1 T TR
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 801,884,000 % (=T — =4 :
800,192,000 A% ) 80,188 80,019
Equivalent to RMB’000 FEARETT 84,973 84,838
During the year, 1,692,000 share options under the Company’s RZANE[ 1,692,000 RIABIE AN RIS IR EET 2
share option scheme were exercised. Accordingly, 1,692,000 BT EITEE - Btk 0 1,692,000 i Z A% EE S
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were issued as a result of the 01Tz ERRE AR EHEREEITEMET

exercise of share options.
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A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the
above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as

follows:

Number of

shares

in issue

(=% 56y

B A

At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—H—H 798,584,000

Share options exercised BT R IEA 1,608,000
At 31 December 2012 and N-—E——FE+=A

1 January 2013 =+—HkK

—T—=%—H—H 800,192,000

Share options exercised BITE R B AR A 1,692,000
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+=A1

==[F 801,884,000

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in note
30 to the financial statements.

The Company adopted a share option scheme in 2003 (the “2003
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible persons (including the Company’s directors,
independent non-executive directors, employees of the Group and
other eligible participants as defined under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
The 2003 Share Option Scheme became effective on 21 June
2003 and remained in force for 10 years from that date until 20
June 2013.

The maximum number of shares permitted to be issued upon the
exercise of options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme was an
amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
upon listing. 10% refreshment of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
mandate had been approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 6 May 2011. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible person in the 2003
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

2B Mg ARFRBEITRARTFENR S
FamT
Share
Issued premium
capital account Total
ERITRAE B3R E B
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEETTT BT T BT T
79,858 65,690 145,548
161 1,027 1,188
80,019 66,717 146,736
169 1,346 1,515
80,188 68,063 148,251

BREAR AR ZHARE
RHFFES0 ©

BN RB 15

RARAR_EZE=FRMANEREAS(T=ZZF
=RERRiERTED) - aﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁl%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ”ﬁﬁﬁ
FOEEBAT(BREARRESE  BUIFRTE
= AEEEIRR-_ZTE=BREAZIRENE
e ERSEE) RESBRER - — T =K
BN —EE=F A+ —BAEBIR%HA

B TFARBERE=_S—=F"A=+H-

RE_ST=_BRESTEBREMA TET
MERSRNEE BESERBRETEREARR
RETREETRMNEI10% - — TE=FBIET
B2 10%EHMBERER_TE——FRARAZR
%ﬁgk’“%%tt}& FEEA12EAREART =

—BREFENEUAERS EENERE
E’\]T%%ﬂﬂimﬂx@%ﬁ P AR R REAA R R A
EBRITRM 1% AR o LE—FROBEIRERN
FERHE - AERRAS LERRAE -



A new share option scheme, which was approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting on 24 May 2013,
became effective on 21 June 2013 (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”, together with the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the
“Scheme”) and will remain in force for 10 years until 20 June 2023.
The principal terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme are similar to
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 by each grantee with no other
consideration being payable by the grantee. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period commencing on such date on or after the date on
which the option is granted as the Board may determine in granting
the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as
the Board may determine in granting the option but in any event
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the directors,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer, provided that the exercise price shall
not be less than the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the
Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

MERETE (R —=FR AT HHKRREA
FRE FERRALAE) N -_E—=FA=+—H
RER(T =T =BRETE] E-_FTT=FRK
BB ZA8 DIKETFARE_F
TEFRAZTH R -ZBREAECEER
RE—TT =R SIAREM -

BTYARBIESE « BE N E B IRH % S (B
TR EE SIS B IE I TE O o AN
MAEM12E A BERFARAREERR KB L
FENATEE B SR ST I BRSO (A B AR B
ARG RIS BTRNON0.1%  KERH
BRENSE(REARARRMAERERH A S
R E& T2 ) #875,000,000/8 7T » BIZE E L ER
RHAEG EISIRERLE -

BB ZRREREZE R HE21 B NER
W AR ARRBRIERBEAS N EMAE A
10BN EBARE - ABFTSERHEBR
BZAREKMEENANEEEEEARHBE
PR AR BB TE B0 B A RO A D A R B L > T RE RS
(BEmMA T SBEHE L AR -F)REZ
STEIRIRRI TR -

BRENTEENESETE @ ETSERATSE
MESE () ARRBRORELBRES BERR
FRETER AU T(E R (i) A AR DR BEER LA
HART AL{E2E 5 B AR R PR A0 F T 8 - HETT
BETFIRALRREBRAEE -

BEREYERTHAATZAREINKRAE
LEROER -
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme AT BZET 8RN F AR TR B :
during the year:

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
Ik ] INHEF 13
THEE - BREREA THE  BREHA
HK$ ’000 HK$ ’000
BT BT
per share per share
=1 Bk
At 1 January ®n—AH—H 2.614 11,592 2.486 17,000
Granted during the year FABEH 2.080 1,000 - -
Exercised during the year FRABITE 0.744 (1,692) 0.716 (1,608)
Lapsed during the year FANBRK - - 2.846 (3,800)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 2.855 10,900 2.614 11,592
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share R REISETE B INEE AL (E A
options exercised during the year was HK$2.1561(2012: 215617 (=T — —4F : B#1.8147T) o
HK$1.814).
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options WERE SR » R TE B IR 1T (8 I 4T BRRS 4
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
2013
—EgE—=
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE THEE™ THREHARE
’000 HK$
BT
per share
BR
800 0.700 09-12-2009 to 08-12-2014
9,100 3.130 25-03-2012 to 24-03-2017
1,000 2.080 28-03-2014 to 27-03-2019
10,900
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2012

—ET—_F
Number of options Exercise price*
B e THEE”
'000 HK$
BT
per share
B
952 0.710
580 0.800
160 0.740
800 0.700
9,100 3.130

11,592

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Group’s share capital.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated
as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. This value is inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitation of the
valuation model used. The following table lists the inputs to the
model:

Date of grant A

Dividend yield (%) % B2 (%)

Expected volatility (%) T8 HROR 18 (%)
Historical volatility (%) 1BIE R R (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) ERBITIR R (%)
Expected life of option (year) FERRETRAT 2 (F)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over
the past five years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

Exercise period
I HAME

04-04-2008 to 03-04-2013
10-07-2008 to 09-07-2013
01-02-2009 to 31-01-2014
09-12-2009 to 08-12-2014
25-03-2012 to 24-03-2017

il TP AR B ITA KA R B A H R A IR L2 E) -
AR ITHEA TIARE -

BT UARAGENBRENALEDNE TRER
BEBMMENR — FRAMGEEEA MG XEE
BETRBEEN R RGNS - ERERERRRAAE
RWEERAFERY - EREEANFSEEXD
RAEERE - TRIEZRA B ARE :

9/12/2008 25/3/2011 28/3/2013
6.27 1.97 2.78

39 40 42

39 40 42

1.63 1.97 0.63

6 6 6

BEREEAFHLREBEBEDFNELENETE -
ROBEBRTERBBEN TN - BHKERRBE
KA ARBENER - EARBERLEE
PRAER o

I 48 24t 15 F AR 0 B R 31 A A A0 e
oo
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The 1,692,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in
the issue of 1,692,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new
share capital of HK$169,200 and share premium of HK$1,089,648
as further detailed in note 29 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had 10,900,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 1.36% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 10,900,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company,
additional share capital of HK$1,090,000 and share premium of
HK$30,029,500 (before share issue expenses).

(@) GROUP
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 54 to
55 of the financial statements.

()  Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the then consolidated net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation as set out in note 1, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof.

(i)  Statutory surplus reserve (the “SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the articles of association of the Mainland China
Subsidiaries, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are each
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as
determined in accordance with the PRC generally
accepted accounting principles, to the SSR until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
Mainland China Subsidiaries. Part of the SSR may be
converted to increase the paid-up capital, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital.

(i) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

FR - 1TERY 1,602,000 17 BE A AE S| AR A1 31T
1,692,000 % & B A% {5 & N ¥ IR 75 169,200 7% 7T
KR 3% 18 1,089,648 7 7T » #E 15 A B IS 3R 3K M
29 -

R-E—=F+_A=+—8 " AR AREZ:TE
¥ 510,900,000 1) BB AR i) RETTE - MERE
BARRFEZITIRNL1.36% ° BIFARQTIREN
BARGEE - BEITER T BIRAEE S BN A R 31T
10,900,000 & 28 SN E 3@ A% - #201,090,000 7 T K
P& AR LA B2 3% 49 Y45 18 30,029,500 78 7T (Rt B 17 3617
Fx) o

(@ *&£H
REEFERAFERATFENSERE
HEHRUEIRRES4 AR5 BERGAERE
FRHRA -

(i) HBARER
REEMBARBRIERBEM TR
B & B E AR AT IR BB O B A B 8 B O 4R
EEEFEREAATRBMNEBEE
MBITHARABIROEERNZESE

iy ZEERHBLAESR

BEPEQTERTEMBRRNHA
AER AEMNEARSEARTH
RRGER - HEBEEFA10%
PEEZERBAES  EEEER
BRATESEDR BN B QR M E A
B50% ° D ETEBBRAE S AEL
BUE AR INRRA - B AL RE
BREE T A A AN 80 25% ©

@iy EREBHE
FE 34,08 Eh ok 18 T PR iR SR 3 B HNED B
BRGNP EREAELENELZE -
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(o) COMPANY (b) AT
Capital  Exchange
Share Share redemption  fluctuation
premium  Contributed option reserve reserve Retained
account surplus reserve EARE ERRE profits Total
RIVEE  HARR BRERE ffe E REER ]

Notes ~ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mz ARETR ARMTT ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARET:R

At 1 January 2012 R-E--5-F—-H 69,183 100,175 4,256 2,715 (79,085) 58,303 155,547
Profit for the year RERET] N = = = = = 58,048 58,048
Other comprehensive loss for AEREMEZARE -
the year:
exchange differences BRER - - - - (1918) = (1918)
Total comprehensive income for AEEPENGAS
the year - - - - (1,918 58,048 56,130
Exercise of share options TEERE 30 989 - (187) = = = 802
Dividend on shares issued for —E——%5+-A=t+-H
employee share options exercised 477 80/E S B IERT
after 31 December 2011 BIRHAORE = = = = = (70) (70)
Equity-settled share SARRIE S T M B R 2
option arrangements 30 - - 1,439 - - - 1,439
Interim 2012 dividend —E-—EHERE 12 = = = = = ©.771) 0,771
Proposed final 2012 dividend BE-S-—FKERE 12 = = = = - (35,408) (35,408)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-HR
and 1 January 2013 =+-BR=Z-=%
-5-A 0172 100175 5,508 o715 100y 71102 168669
Profit for the year RERRF 11 - - - - - 47,621 47,621
Other comprehensive loss for TEEEMZARE:
the year:
exchange differences ERER - - - - (6,939) - (6,939)
Total comprehensive incomefor ~ AEE2AREAR
the year - - - - (6,939) 47,621 40,682
Exercise of share options TiERRE 30 1,073 - (207) - - = 866
Dividend on shares issued for —E-ZH+-A=1—H
employee share options RITER A B BRRR A AR
exercised after BIRDERE
31 December 2012 - = = = = (58) (68)
Equity-settled share option IRES S BB B
arrangements 30 - - 1,412 - - - 1,412
Interim 2013 dividend —T-CERERE 12 = - - - - (12661 (12,661
Proposed final 2013 dividend BE-T-=FfERE 12 - - - - = (43,369) (43,365)
At 31 December 2013 W-ZE-=F+-A
S 71,245 100,175 6,713 2,715 (87,942) 62,639 155,545
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of RAE VA BRI FE31 (e Tt iE R IZ S B &
the then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired ERTNERB AT S BN SR FEBAAA
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation referred to in note 31(a), over TABEEBEEmMBITHARRN TAM EE
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange 7 o
therefor.
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(b) COMPANY (Cont’d)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the issued capital account and the share
premium account when the related options are exercised, or
be transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

Financial assets 2013
HBEE —E-=f
Equity
investments
at fair value
through
profit

orloss Loans and
FEPBEFRLL  receivables
A REIR EXR
ZBRERE PEWRFRIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®TR

Trade and notes receivables JEYE 5 k2718 - 381,203
Financial assets included in -~ st ATBN - e K
prepayments, deposits and  H i fEU R 2

other receivables VBEE - 6,274
Equity investments at fair B iBIEF AR ETIER

value through profit or loss 7 fR %4 5,896 -
Cash and cash equivalents, & RELEEMR

and pledged bank deposits 2 #E #$R17775% - 462,892

5,896 850,369

(b)

AT (&)
BREZESEERBERMRITEERED
NRE - HE—FTERFHRPBmEMT2.4
AR ST FIERN S BERN - EEMER
ERATER  HBBESEEERITRARR
i1 s BHR - S E A R RE S B BUH
W EEBESREEREREN -
Group
F5E
2012
“T——fF
Equity
investments
at fair value
through
profit
or loss Loans and
E@IBEI receivables
Total 2DAENE BEHk Total
mE RERE FENRIE FEEd]

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT

381,203 = 402,922 402,922
6,274 = 5,459 5,459
5,896 5,705 = 5,705

462,892 = 315,914 315,914

856,265 5,705 724,295 730,000



Financial liabilities

MBEE

Trade and notes payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank loans

Financial assets

MBEE

BRBERAARE
DHR 2 A

Equity investments at
fair value through
profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents 4 RIESZEY
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2013 2012
—E—= T
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
REBHRATE  REEKAETE
ZHKEeE 2B AaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
R E 5 K RIERIE 245,139 285,319
ETAEMEN R RTERER
ZBas 73,945 53,417
STERITER 248,176 201,751
567,260 540,487
Company
/N
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_fF
Equity Equity
investments investments
at fair value at fair value
through through
profit profit
orloss Loans and or loss Loans and
FEBEFRLL  receivables BiBEZEI  receivables
ARETIR EXR Total AAfEFIER Bk Total
ZBRERE PEMRFRIE mEm ZRERE FENHRIE FEkd]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®TR AR®BTR AR®ETT AR®ETT AR®BTR
5,896 - 5,896 5,705 - 5,705
- 608 608 - 535 535
5,896 608 6,504 5,705 535 6,240
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The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1. fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company held the
following financial instruments measured at fair value, which was

based on quoted market prices:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013:

Level 1
E—E
RMB’000
ARETT

Equity investments at fair value % 818 %5 A A /R B BR
through profit or loss 2 RIERE

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank
deposits, trade and notes receivables, trade and notes payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, and interest-bearing bank loans approximate to their fair
values.

AEERAATELRBAEELRESR TR
BASAE :

F-E: AAERTHHAELRERERDS
3 RIS HR)

FE: AAERERMEESOLRERTH
ROEALE(EERHE) 02 DY
eSS

B=E: AAERERALFEATHETSH

BEMHLTHENAREEERTENER
2E GBI RER) B EEAE

RZE—=F+_A=+—8 ' KEERKARAEF
BUARBEUETSHRE) FTENTIEMIA

R-IF—=F+ _HA=1—HABRIALEHENE

Level 2 Level 3 Total

< - E=E =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT ARBFIT ARETIT
- - 5,896

HE-_E—=F+-A=t—HBItEE FENA
FE_EBRETEARBEFEEE  TEEAXBHE
ZE-

RekReFEY SHERRTESR  BRESR
EEFE  BNESHREEER  sFABRMNR &
E REMBYRZ MEEE  FEAEMBEMNKRE
REMZUBEE ARG RRITERNREESR
HARERE -



The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s
operating activities (when revenue or expenses are denominated in
a different currency from the Group’s functional currency) and the
Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

Currently, the PRC government imposes control over foreign
currencies. RMB, the official currency in the PRC, is not freely
convertible. Enterprises operating in Mainland China can enter into
exchange transactions through the People’s Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions. Payments for imported materials or
services and remittance of earnings outside of Mainland China are
subject to the availability of foreign currencies which depends on
the foreign currency denominated earnings of the enterprises, or
must be arranged through the People’s Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions. Approval for exchanges at the
People’s Bank of China or other authorised financial institutions is
granted to enterprises in the PRC for valid reasons such as
purchases of imported materials and remittance of earnings. While
conversion of RMB to the Hong Kong dollar or other foreign
currencies can generally be effected at the People’s Bank of China
or other authorised financial institutions, there is no guarantee that
it can be effected at all times.

The Group does not have any significant investment outside of
Mainland China. However, the Group has transactional currencies
exposures. These exposures arise from sales of the Group’s
subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. Approximately 9.89% of the Group’s sales for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 11.77%) were
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the subsidiaries. Upon receipt of currencies other than the
functional currencies, the subsidiaries sell them to the banks
immediately.

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

AEERARKWEZHTERENESRBFHM
BEMBEENAG  WIHIHRHEKEERKES -

AEBEBMTEAMPENEZRBRAINERR - 15
BRBAASHECRR - U TNAEESRALRE
ERELMBHERRANBERZHE

SMNE =L B

%Eﬂ A EMTANARBIRRRSRER
PERBE)EL KB R o NEEAERERE

EH&E%EKE@%%HW& 53 S ATRIR

AEENEEENERIE) RASERINEE KB

RAMFRERR

BAT - PEBUHDERINEES - PEESEEA
REATT B BT - RABEARELE 2 CEMEB
FRARRITREMBACHEBELEINERS -
SATEO R SRS 2 BB RS EFELHBEAX
PESF MR I SNE (R BRRER ] - IRFE DA
SNEFHE 2 B - JMABE BT EARRITREAM
RS HEBIEL R - RPRREZEEEATR
DIET - MFBEQRBLELBA - AR
HAERPEARRITHREMBASREEETS
Mo ﬁ%AE%%@%ﬁYE@%M—&TE¢H
Aﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@uT%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ BEARE
RIS I BEAETT ©

AN B A R B K B LA SN AT R EKIRE © ST
AEBDALHR HEEER - B EREKRKAEUARSE
R EAERB AR AENEEEE N E
BEIZHE BE_T—=F+_"A=1+—HIE
B AEBXH8% HE(ZT — = F:
11.77%) Th AR S B Ry R B K BE M B A R M I aE &
BELAONZ BB EHE - RIREITHAEE BB LASN 2 BB
% $%lm¢ﬁﬁﬁW§ RIS R
ETFRITUR BB E
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Cont'd) SNERB (2)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRINTEFMBEMAISERZERFITIEZBRT
possible change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all other 7N B A BR B AT ) 2T O B SR 3R A 1R 0] g
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to PHPRE(BERELEEERBENARELZS) -

changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

Increase (+)/
decrease (-) in  Increase/(decrease)

foreign currency rate in profit before tax
SNEEER FHE(+), HERBIADEF 2
T#() B, L)
RMB’000
ARETR
2013 —E—=
If RMB strengthens against the i AR K E T AE +5% (4,199)
United States dollar
If RMB weakens against the fim AR N T (B 5% 4,199
United States dollar
If RMB strengthens against Euro WA R S BT AHE +5% (266)
If RMB weakens against Euro fig N R S BUTE (B -5% 266
2012 —E—=F
If RMB strengthens against the s AR K E T HE
United States dollar +5% (4,925)
If RMB weakens against the i AR N 2T (B
United States dollar 5% 4,925
If RMB strengthens against Euro i N R S BT HHE +5% (68)
If RMB weakens against Euro fig N R S BUTE (B -5% 68
CREDIT RISK FEERR
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third REBERZEEBAIRNE=BETRS - &R
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade REBMBER - FIERREERETRINER
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In WEKBIEEZERFE  FrEE o i A&
addition, receivables and balances are monitored on an ongoing H e R EER RN RARNER - MAKES
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debt is not significant. ZRREEAERX o
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of REEREBEMVBEENEERR - EHEE
the Group, which comprise cash and short-term deposits, other e RREBER - KA EWFIE RERER AR
receivables and equity investments at fair value through profit or BAERZ IRHERE - AEBREFELOFEENE
loss, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the B - ERASHZEIAMKAME -

counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.



CREDIT RISK (Cont’d)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables is disclosed in note 20 to
the financial statements.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

Less than

On demand 3 months
REX SPR=@A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®TR

Interest-bearing bank loans st 23R1TE R -
Trade and notes payables  EE 5 &iﬁ; EE] 52,349 155,385
Other payables HAh R 73,945 -

126,294 155,385

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

FERE(E)
BN EE(EE %%E% AREBAENFE=
FETRD  BIRREMER - RHEERRH
%ﬁ/&%‘%ﬁ?%ﬂ% Sl SE R SR
SREERR -

FRASBEEREEZREMELFEERRNE
—TEEEMTIWENPBRKRME20 -

REE SR
AEBZBRAKEURDESTI TR BEEE
BEommEk -t TASZRESR T ARG
BE(MERESFIE) B HBE AR KB KE?
BEBRHRSRE -

AEEREAS QRN RETENR RS BHREY
BEEZEHBAMMT

Group
by 3 |
2013
—E-=F
3to
less than
12 months 1to5 Over
=ZLR years 5years Total
+=f8A —ZRE REULE @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE AR%TR AR¥TR ARETR

248,176 - - 248,176
37,405 - - 245139
- - - 73,945
285,581 - - 567,260

129



Notes to Financial Statements
MIGE =R

31 December 2013 R—Z—=F+_-A=+—8

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. LRAMEEAERYE(£)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont'd) FRBESER(E)

Group
A&E
2012
—E-—F
3to
less than
Less than 12 months 1t05 Over
On demand 3 months ZELR years 5 years Total
RER  PR=A +=f@A —ERF RFENE BT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®ETT AR®TT AR®ETT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank loans 5t B R1TE - - 201,751 - - 201,751
Trade and notes payables ~ [ERNE 5 K ZEZIE 141,071 44 521 99,727 - - 285,319
Other payables Rt AR 53,417 - - = - 53,417
194,488 44,521 301,478 - - 540,487
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT ERER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEEEEEANEZBERRREREBNGE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to RER I REFRRNERLE  AZEAEBRE
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and B RRARREE -

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to AEEeRELERRECERLERNEBLY
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust HELHAE - RERNARERER  AEENE
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment ARLATREAREKE - REERN TR
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. THRG - REBEE=_T—=F+-_A=+—HK=
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for T——F+-A=F+—HIEFERN BEELRER
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2013 and WERR  BRRBEWEEDFMES -

31 December 2012.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital plus net debt. The net debt includes,
trade and notes payables, other payables and accruals, interest-
bearing bank loans less cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of
the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

Trade and notes payables FETE 5 R EE A

Other payables and accruals HipEN R NTBIRE A

Interest-bearing bank loans STRIRITEXR

Less: Cash and cash equivalents and A BHe kReFEEDHN
pledged bank deposits BEHEMRITIFR

Net debt FRE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent &t A BB A E1G R

Capital and net debt BEARKFEE
Gearing ratio BEXRBELEE

31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

BEREE (&)
AEBFAEAEBELREREEAER - AL
BELETFEERNEERNINER B2 B
E O FREAERNES RERE - EMENK
RIEIRER  HERTER  YHRBELSRESE
BYAMEIERRITER - EABIESLREE AR
G - RIREHIRZ EAR BB RN T -

Group

F
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

245,139 285,319
95,859 69,825
248,176 201,751
(462,892) (315,914)
126,282 240,981
1,091,737 982,112
1,218,019 1,223,093
10% 20%

131



31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H

(@) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (a) REHERIE
The Group leases certain of its office properties under AEERBLEEHERHEABE THAY
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are ¥ - EHEENEEHRNTF—EMEZRE -

negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company had total BE_Z—=F+"A=+—80 A£E@K
future minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable AR RIARAR T AT RS A & HH 205 B 18 SR 2k g
operating leases falling due as follows: NEEEEFIBAENT
Group Company
AEH PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —ET——%F —E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE AR¥BTT AR%¥TR AR¥ETER

Within one year —FER 836 745 - -
After one year but no —FRETZRAF
more than five years 447 1,070 - =
1,283 1,815 - -
(b) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (b) EA&EYE
Group Company
AEEH N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——F —E—= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE ARBTT AR®TR ARETR

Contracted, but not BEI4 - BARIERE

provided for:

Plant and machinery R Kk ikes 16,951 56,770 - -
Authorised, but not BIRHE - BRETH :

contracted for:

Plant and machinery 5% 5= Ko 1 23 74,404 96,280 - =

91,355 153,050 - =
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BELFXRS
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AEEXTEEEAEME :
2013 2012
—_g—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e AL NREWET 3,956 4,009
Employee share option benefits B TEsRERA) 112 194
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIME R 75 72
Total compensation paid to key TEETBAEMNE B
management personnel 4,143 4,275
Further details of the directors’ and the chief executive officer’s BERBEHMNSFH BRI IEREMET ©

emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial statements.

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. MBImERMAE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue BBREER-_TE—NE=A+/\REEEH
by the board of directors on 18 March 2014. R ERLT o
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements, is set out below.

NTRAKERNEERLEMBFER 2 XE  BE - AR
RIFER R - U0k 8 B AMKE M B®RE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=1t—BLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B-=F —FT--F ZT—F ZT-TF ZTTNHF
RESULTS E RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®Tr ARBTT ARKETT AREBTT
Revenue WA 914,973 856,539 1,081,044 1,286,683 1,082,110
Cost of sales SHE KA (511,725) (532,144) (718,292 (910,526) (754,058)
Gross profit e 403,248 324,395 362,752 376,157 328,052
Other income and gains E YA K Wz 17,197 14,374 16,601 9,145 4,595
Selling and distribution expenses  $5& &9 & A (112,749) (104,711) (100,861) (95,673) (101,206)
Administrative expenses THER (61,609) (53,070) (55,777) (48,884) (47,575)
Other expenses HEMER (53,521) (32,522) (41,369) (31,317) (32,008)
Finance costs Wi%E A (3,600) (3,825) (2,159) (549) (395)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREBL AR 188,966 144,641 179,187 208,879 151,463
Income tax expense FrS®t (35,867) (30,135) (32,880) (42,041) (33,119)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR R SR 153,099 114,506 146,307 166,838 118,344
Attributable to: AT & IBFE(L
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZ S DN 153,099 114,506 146,307 166,840 118,388
Non-controlling interest VAR e e - = = @ (44)
153,099 114,506 146,307 166,838 118,344
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE - -8EBRK
NON-CONTROLLING FERER
INTEREST
TOTAL ASSETS wmEE 1,721,148 1,569,643 1,393,816 1,413,157 1,126,465
TOTAL LIABILITIES wes (629,411)  (587,531) (474,938) (578,203) (414,621)
NON-CONTROLLING IEERER
INTEREST - = - - (555)
1,091,737 982,112 918,878 834,954 711,289
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The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

U

from Wednesday, 21 May 2014 to Friday, 23 May 2014, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, all transfer of shares of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the
appropriate share transfer forms must be lodged for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 20 May 2014 with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong. (The current address at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong remains effective till 30 March
2014.)

from Thursday, 29 May 2014 to Friday, 30 May 2014, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend. In order to establish entitlements to
the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the appropriate
share transfer forms must be lodged for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 28 May 2014 with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong. (The current address at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong remains effective till 30 March
2014.)

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, no
transfers of shares will be registered.

The 2014 AGM will be held on Friday, 23 May 2014. Details of the 2014
AGM are set out in the notice of AGM with constitutes part of the circular
to Shareholders sent together with this annual report.

ERRFER TSR EEHEROHBFELTE

i) BT NFRA-+—HEH=)Z2=-F—NH
FRA-+=R(EHR)(BEERMKR) ' B
EBRHBEFEDTE  UWEBTARLFE_ZT—N4F
REBFAGURE LREZBRREH o BRERRF
AEREE T NEFREBFRASIT RS LE
Z 2R TEARRNBROEREREERER
BEEREE AR -_T-NFRAA-+HEHD)
THEE=1298 ' RERARRZHEERDBEFZ
ROEEERNHERARMEREERFE - i
WABBE2FEAER1835RAMA N 221E (B Al
W EBERE AR FED L 26BHBAR
E-E—ME=A=+H)-

(i) BZE-—MNEFRAA-THAB(EHME==—NX
FRA=ZTHEHH)(REEEMK)  BiFhE
BOBEERFE UBTZAERRERPRE
MR S - AEREAWEGERIRE RARE 2
R TEARRARMRNERERFEARZEIRRE
EEE AR _T-NFRA-+NB(E#H=)
THMEE=+28]  RERNRF ZEBRHBEE
ROEEERNHERARMEREERFE - i
WABBE2FEAER183RAMA N 221E (B Al
W EBERE AR EEP L 26BHBAR
E-FT—NF=A=+H)-

R ER SR R ()W ERBEA - S TSRO BF
BRTFE-

“ENFERRBFASEN _E-—WUFAA_+=H
(EHI)BT - T NOFRRBFRAGBENHFBD
BRBEBRRBEA  ZBNERAFHR—HFHEMR
Ho
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2013 AGM
Announcement of 2013 interim results
Announcement of 2013 annual results
2014 AGM

2013 Interim dividend

Payment date for 2013 interim dividend
Proposed 2013 final dividend

Ex-dividend date for 2013 final dividend
Book closing dates for 2013 final dividend

Payment date for proposed 2013
final dividend

136

24 May 2013
22 August 2013
18 March 2014
23 May 2014

HK$0.020 per share
25 September 2013

HK$0.068 per share
27 May 2014
29-30 May 2014

on or about
11 June 2014

—E-=FRRBFRE
N —E—=FH XK
N —E—=F2F¥E&
“R-NFERRBFAE

—E-=FFERE
—E-=FRERE
EAS B ER

BERRE_T—=4
REARE B

—E - EREEE

“E=FREKRE
LB A

EEkEs _T—=F
REARR BIRAS B A3

—E—=FFA_+WMH
—E—=%/\A=+=H

—E—mF=A+/\H
—E—NFRA-+=H

BRE % 0.020 7T

“E-—=FNAA-+HhH

%% 0.068 7T

—E-UFERA-++H

“E-FRA=-tHhH=ZE

HA=+H
—ET—mFEXA+—H
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